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THE FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF CINCINNATI

is a triple-A rated regional 

wholesale bank providing financial 

services for residential housing and 

economic development to 741 

member financial institutions in the 

Fifth FHLBank District of Kentucky, 

Ohio and Tennessee.



(dollars in millions) 2006 2005 2004 2003 2002

SELECTED ITEMS AT YEAR END
Total assets $ 81,387 $ 77,180 $ 76,577 $ 77,144 $ 71,071
Advances to members 41,956 40,262 41,301 43,129 40,063
Mortgage loans held for portfolio, net 8,461 8,418 8,371 8,101 3,767
Investments 30,620 28,220 26,671 25,624 26,819
Deposits 927 911 1,041 1,418 2,333
Consolidated Obligations 75,186 71,098 70,451 69,804 63,034
Retained earnings 255 208 168 92 65
Total capital 3,907 3,709 3,963 3,734 3,611

ANNUAL OPERATING RESULTS
Net income $ 253 $     220 $     227 $     171 $     178
Operating expenses 36 33 29 25 21
Affordable Housing Program assessments 30 26 25 19 20
Total dividends paid 205 179 152 143 157
Weighted average dividend rate 5.81% 5.00% 4.13% 4.00% 4.63%
Average rate on three-month LIBOR 5.20% 3.56% 1.62% 1.21% 1.79%
Average Federal funds target 4.96% 3.19% 1.34% 1.12% 1.67%

PERFORMANCE RATIOS
Return on average assets 0.32% 0.28% 0.28% 0.22% 0.27%
Return on average equity 6.70% 5.79% 5.97% 4.66% 5.17%
Operating expenses to average assets 0.046% 0.042% 0.035% 0.032% 0.032%
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O
n behalf of the Board of Directors (Board) and management, we are pleased to report 

the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (FHLBank) achieved another year of solid

financial performance for its member stockholders and made significant housing

contributions for Fifth District communities. In 2006, we successfully completed our first

year as an SEC registrant. Our Mission Asset services and competitive dividend payments

helped members balance a year characterized by an inverted yield curve and a housing

slowdown in many parts of the District. 

The year ended with two important developments. First, in December the Federal Housing Finance Board

(Finance Board) withdrew the retained earnings component of their proposed capital rule and announced 

it would instead study a risk-based approach to retained earnings, a decision we supported. It also issued 

a regulation that established limits on how much excess stock we can issue, which will most likely alter 

the form of our dividend payments from stock to cash. Second, we strengthened the FHLBank by

undertaking several organizational changes involving staff promotions to key management posts 

and the creation of a new position to bolster the risk management of the FHLBank. 

Solid Financial Performance in 2006

The FHLBank earned $253.1 million in 2006, an increase of $33.4 million, or 15.2 percent, from 2005. 

Our return on equity (ROE) averaged 6.70 percent compared to 5.79 percent a year ago. Our ROE in 2006

was 150 basis points above the 3-month LIBOR, which averaged 5.20 percent during the year. Our operating

expenses in 2006 as a percent of average assets were 0.046 percent, the second-lowest ratio among the 

12 District FHLBanks. Our average regulatory capital-to-asset ratio of 5.05 percent decreased slightly

compared to 2005 but remained well above the 4.00 percent regulatory minimum.

The primary reason for the increase in earnings and profitability was the continued increase in short-term

interest rates throughout 2006. A significant portion of our assets are tied to the 3-month LIBOR index,

which rose 164 basis points in 2006 compared to 2005. This rise contributed to an increase in earnings 

from the portion of assets we funded with interest-free capital.

In 2006, we distributed $205 million of earnings to stockholders as a dividend return on their capital

investment in our FHLBank. This amount represented a 5.81 percent annualized dividend, which was 

61 basis points above average 3-month LIBOR, and compared to a spread of 144 basis points in 2005. 

When average short-term interest rates rise rapidly, our ROE tends to rise and our ROE spread to short-term

benchmarks tends to contract.
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We continued in 2006 to pay dividends in the form of additional shares of stock. Stock dividends provide

members with greater flexibility than cash dividends with respect to liquidity, asset/liability management

and corporate taxation. 

Retained earnings were $255.5 million at the end of 2006, an increase of $47.7 million compared to 

year-end 2005. Your Board elected to build retained earnings during this period of robust earnings growth

in order to help promote stable and competitive dividends over the long term and to provide a cushion

against potential impairment of stockholders’ capital investment due to any unexpected and significant

events. Further, the Finance Board has strongly encouraged the FHLBanks to augment their retained

earnings. Our retained earnings at year end exceeded by more than $95 million the $160 million target

level established in July 2004, and most recently re-affirmed in December 2006, by your Board in the

FHLBank’s Retained Earnings Policy.

Credit Services

Credit activity grew in 2006. The daily average principal Advance balance outstanding to members in

2006 was $45.8 billion, a gain of 2.1 percent from the daily average balance in 2005. Advance principal

balances ended the year at $41.9 billion, a 4.4 percent increase from the 2005 year-end balance. We

believe our Advance products continue to be a primary source of funding for our members.

The growth of Advance balances largely reflects our members’ increased use of short-term and options-

based Advance products. The Advance products with the most activity and the largest balances at year

end were LIBOR-based Advances at $22.7 billion, REPO Advances at $7.7 billion, Convertible Fixed-Rate

Advances at $4.5 billion, and Regular Fixed-Rate Advances at $4.4 billion. Our Putable Advance, first

available in January 2006, generated $444.0 million in activity. Given members’ interest in the Putable

Advance and other options-based Advance programs, we plan to provide more structures and special

offerings of these Advance types in 2007.

In 2006, the FHLBank continued the practice of offering members periodic Advance Specials, which

included Prime-Rate Based, Putable and Regular Fixed-Rate Advances of various terms. A total of 

$1.8 billion in Advance funding – more than triple 2005’s total – was provided to approximately 

150 participating members, including six new users, under the special offerings.

At the end of 2006, nearly three of every four members had Advances outstanding, down slightly from

year-end 2005. Though the average daily balances rose, the number of credit users declined by almost

four percent in 2006, due to mergers and the new members that were added during the year but had 

not yet borrowed. The FHLBank has approximately double the largest number of Advances of any other

District FHLBank because we impose no transaction size requirements on most Advance programs. This

policy enables members to execute Advances in small denominations or large blocks, whichever method

best suits their funding strategy. 

6



Letter of Credit (LOC) balances were up substantially in 2006, ending the year at $6.5 billion, an increase

of $5.1 billion over 2005. As of year end 2006, 445 LOCs were issued to support the credit needs of 

100 members. However, the substantial rise in outstanding balances during 2006 was due to significant

activity by one member. LOCs enable members to pledge collateral for public unit deposits and other

financial needs.

Mortgage Purchase Program

Mortgage Purchase Program (MPP) activity was stable in 2006. MPP operated in an environment of 

rising interest rates and a weaker housing market. In addition, uncertainties over the Finance Board’s

proposed capital regulation for the FHLBanks may have caused some potential MPP customers to 

remain on the sidelines.

Despite the slowdown in the mortgage market, we were able to execute $1.2 billion of Mandatory

Delivery Contracts during the year. MPP unpaid principal balances outstanding at the end of 2006 were

$8.4 billion, an increase of approximately $55 million from the previous year end. We approved eight

members to participate in the program in 2006, for a total number of currently approved Participating

Financial Institutions (PFIs) of 111. About a third of the active participants are first-time sellers in the

secondary mortgage market. In addition, the credit quality of the MPP portfolio has remained strong 

due to the program’s unique risk sharing structure and the use of various credit enhancements. Our

delinquencies are significantly lower than the national and state averages. In 2006, the MPP executed 

its first scheduled release of Lender Risk Account (LRA) funds to our PFIs. These accounts are created 

to cover any potential losses from mortgage defaults. If such losses do not materialize, the LRA funds 

are returned to the PFIs over time.

Housing and Community Investment

The FHLBank’s commitment to affordable housing reached new heights in 2006. The FHLBank committed

$36.7 million to create more than 4,000 units of affordable housing and housing for persons with special

needs through the Affordable Housing Program and American Dream Homeownership Challenge. 

Our programs continue to serve diverse housing needs throughout the district. In Cleveland, Ohio, the

FHLBank helped to provide 82 units of housing for the homeless and those with special needs. We have

committed more than $4 million to fund eight Recovery Kentucky centers statewide for homeless persons

battling substance abuse. Our partnership with the Tennessee Department of Mental Health has helped

create more than 1,000 units of affordable housing.

Our Housing and Community Investment Department worked with members to implement our New

Neighbors program, created late in 2005 to assist displaced hurricane evacuees who sought to relocate 
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to the Fifth District. By May 2006, approximately $3 million had been committed to help these

individuals. As a response to the proposed capital regulation, however, the Board of Directors suspended

New Neighbors and American Dream – both voluntary programs – until it was able to determine the

impact of that proposal on our capital stock management, retained earnings position and cooperative

business model. Following year-end 2006 regulatory action by the Finance Board, your Board in February

2007 elected to expand funding of the American Dream program from $1 million annually to $3 million

for 2007, and to include households relocating to the Fifth District as a result of disasters along with the

program’s traditionally targeted minority and special needs populations.

In addition to our housing programs, our community and economic development programs continue 

to grow, assisting rural and low-income areas of the Fifth District to create jobs. We disbursed 

$117.6 million in low-cost funds through our Community Investment Program and our Economic

Development Advance program.

Regulation

As discussed earlier, in December 2006 the Finance Board withdrew its proposed rule that would have

established new minimum retained earnings requirements, required repurchases of excess capital stock

and imposed sanctions for non-compliance. We would like to thank our members for voicing their

concerns of the unintended consequences of the proposed rule, as well as the Finance Board for their

thoughtful consideration of the valid points expressed in comment letters submitted by our members.

While the retained earnings and required repurchase components of the proposed rule were withdrawn,

the Finance Board did move forward with the regulation that established limits on the amount of excess

stock any FHLBank may issue. This rule prohibits the issuance of new excess stock, including payment 

of dividends in the form of additional shares of stock when an FHLBank’s excess stock exceeds one

percent of its assets. As defined by the Finance Board, excess stock at the Cincinnati FHLBank has

exceeded this limit in recent years due largely to our long-term practice of paying stock dividends.

Starting in 2007, we will be required to pay cash dividends instead of stock dividends when we exceed

the one-percent excess stock threshold. We will certainly keep you informed on the updated status 

of this issue throughout the year.

Membership

Member stockholders declined to 741 in 2006, from 742 in 2005. In 2006, 22 institutions became

stockholders, including six insurance companies while 23 members were lost through mergers and

acquisitions. The number of member stockholders at year end was 317 in Ohio, 230 in Kentucky, 

and 194 in Tennessee. Since 1990 we have approved 904 institutions for membership, while 505 

were lost through mergers and acquisitions.
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Directors

Our Kentucky members re-elected one director and elected one new director for 2007. Elected to his 

first term on the Board was Billie W. Wade, President and CEO of Citizens Union Bank in Shelbyville,

Kentucky. Re-elected to a second term was B. Proctor Caudill, Jr., Director of Kentucky Bank in Paris,

Kentucky.  Our Ohio members elected William J. Small, Chairman and CEO of First Federal Bank 

of the Midwest in Defiance, Ohio, to his first term on the Board.

The Board elected Carl F. Wick, Principal/Owner of Wick and Associates, a business consulting firm, 

as Chairman for 2007. Mr. Wick has been Vice Chairman since 2005 and is a representative of our

FHLBank to the Council of Federal Home Loan Banks. The Board also elected Richard C. Baylor,

Chairman, President and CEO of Advantage Bank of Cambridge, Ohio, as Vice Chairman.

A significant development in January 2007 was the Finance Board’s decision to fill 57 vacant seats for

public interest directors throughout the FHLBank System. Our FHLBank had four vacancies out of six

public interest director positions in 2006. The Finance Board reappointed Mr. Wick and Stephen B. Smith

through 2007 and adopted a process for filling the remaining vacancies. This process allows the FHLBank

Board to submit nominees to the Finance Board for consideration. Our public interest directors bring a

diversity of skills, experience and background that is vital to the operation of an enterprise such as ours.

We look forward to returning to a full complement of Board members.

Management Changes

In January 2007, we announced a number of organizational changes, as part of a broader effort 

to realign the management of our Mission Asset Activity and to strengthen our risk management.

Andrew S. Howell was promoted to Executive Vice President, Mission Asset Activity, from Senior 

Vice President, Credit Services. Mr. Howell assumes the overall responsibility of the FHLBank’s Mission

Asset Activity, which includes Credit Services, the Mortgage Purchase Program, and Housing and

Community Investment. 

Carole L. Cossé was promoted to Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer from Senior 

Vice President, Treasurer. Ms. Cossé is responsible for the overall management of the FHLBank’s 

assets and liabilities, including funding and hedging activities, and oversight of the FHLBank’s

Asset/Liability Committee

Stephen J. Sponaugle was promoted to Senior Vice President and Chief Risk Officer from Vice President,

Financial Analysis. Mr. Sponaugle manages the FHLBank’s financial modeling and analysis functions 

and assumes the additional responsibility of Chief Risk Officer, reporting directly to the President. 

Maura H. Wolf was promoted to Vice President, Treasurer, from Vice President, Capital Markets. Ms. Wolf

is directly responsible for the management of the FHLBank’s investments, funding and hedging, as well 

as general asset/liability management.
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Richard L. Witte, who has been Director of Internal Audit since January 1993, retired in February 2007

after 24 years with the FHLBank. Mr. Witte has assisted the FHLBank through many changes including

Gramm-Leach-Bliley and SEC registration. We recognize and thank him for his extraordinary service. 

The FHLBank hired James G. Dooley, Sr., in the third quarter of 2006 to direct the internal audit function.

The Year Ahead

We start 2007 on solid financial footing and strong use of our Mission Asset services. Over the long term,

we expect that earnings will fluctuate year to year. We prepare for that by controlling our interest rate risk

exposure, and by maintaining a strong capital base, ample liquidity, a sustainable business model and a

stable membership base. Our triple-A ratings are a testament to these efforts. In 2007, we will again

dedicate ourselves to support your housing finance needs through product and service delivery and 

to achieve a competitive dividend return.

One of the ways we intend to enhance our business in 2007 is with web-based seminars. While these will

never replace face-to-face conversations about our products and services, we believe that using the Internet

to help educate our members has many advantages. It is fast and convenient, and it will save money and

travel time. We will expand our “webinars” throughout 2007 to include many areas of the FHLBank.

We anticipate another busy year for our affordable housing programs. We know the need exists for decent,

affordable housing in the district, particularly for those with special needs. As always, the challenge is to

direct the awards toward projects and providers that can effectively fill the need. We are fortunate in the

Fifth District to have many worthy providers and members dedicated to their communities.

July 2007 will mark the 75th anniversary of the Federal Home Loan Bank System. In this report we

recognize some of the events that helped shape the System and our Cincinnati FHLBank. At the core 

of these milestones is our relationship with our members and our ability to adapt to dynamic changes 

in the housing finance market. We would like to extend our appreciation to all Fifth District members, 

past and present, for the many accomplishments we have achieved together over the past 75 years.

Charles “Bud” Koch, Chair David H. Hehman, President
Board of Directors
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The Board would like to express its sincere appreciation for the leadership and dedication of two

directors whose Board terms expired December 2006. Charles J. Koch and Charles Beach, Jr. presided

over the steady growth of the FHLBank from 1998 – 2006. They helped usher in a new capital plan 

as required by law, oversaw the SEC registration process, added the Mortgage Purchase Program to

complement existing Advances, and supported innovation of the Affordable Housing Program which

serves thousands of Fifth District residents.  

SPECIAL THANKS TO OUR RETIRING DIRECTORS
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Charles J. “Bud” Koch
Mr. Koch, Chairman, Charter One Bank, N.A.,
Cleveland, Ohio, chaired the Board from 2005
– 2006. As Chair, he led the Board through
effective SEC registration and mitigated
significant regulatory action. Bud served on
or chaired the following Board committees:
Asset/Liability Policy, Congressional
Outreach, Credit Policy, Personnel and
Secondary Market. Additionally, Bud served
as a representative to the Council of Federal
Home Loan Banks.

Charles “General” Beach, Jr. 
General Beach, Chairman, Peoples Exchange

Bank, Beattyville, Kentucky, served on or
chaired the following Board committees:

Asset/Liability Policy, Audit, Budget,
Congressional Outreach, Credit Policy,

Housing and Community Development,
Personnel and Y2K. As Y2K Chair, he led

initial development of the FHLBank’s
Business Resumption Contingency Plan that
is in effect today. General Beach retired with
a record of perfect attendance, having never

missed a Committee or Board meeting in
nine years of service.

Please join the Board and management in extending our gratitude to these directors for their stewardship

and integrity during their years of Board leadership and service.



(front row, from left to right)

Charles Beach, Jr., Chairman, Peoples Exchange Bank, Beattyville, Kentucky

Carl F. Wick, Board Vice Chair, Principal, Wick and Associates, Centerville, Ohio

Charles J. (Bud) Koch, Board Chair, Chairman, Charter One Bank, N.A., Cleveland, Ohio

James R. Powell, Chairman and CEO, Liberty Savings Bank, FSB, Wilmington, Ohio

FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK OF CINCINNATI



(back row, from left to right)

Stephen B. Smith, Chairman, Haury and Smith Contractors, Nashville, Tennessee

R. Stan Puckett, Chairman and CEO, Greene County Bank, Greeneville, Tennessee

Stephen D. Hailer, President and CEO, North Akron Savings Bank, Akron, Ohio

William Y. Carroll, Sr., Director, Carter County Bank, Elizabethton, Tennessee

B. Proctor Caudill, Jr., Director, Kentucky Bank, Paris, Kentucky

Richard C. Baylor, Chairman, President and CEO, Advantage Bank, Cambridge, Ohio

Michael R. Melvin, President, Perpetual Federal Savings Bank, Urbana, Ohio

Robert E. Brosky, President and Chairman, First Federal Savings and Loan Association of Lorain, Lorain, Ohio

2006 BOARD OF DIRECTORS



“I have today signed the home loan bank bill. Its purpose is 
to establish a series of discount banks for home mortgages.

“There are to be 8 to 12 banks established in different parts 
of the country with a total capital of $125 million. 

Building and loan associations, savings banks, insurance 
companies, etc. are to be eligible for membership.

“The purpose of the system is to meet the present emergency and to
build homeownership on more favorable terms than exist today.

“In the long view we need at all times to encourage homeownership,
and for such encouragement it must be possible for homeowners 

to obtain long-term loans payable in installments.”

July 22, 1932, Herbert Hoover, President of the United States: 1929-1933

LAYING OF THE CORNERSTONE: 
75 Years of the FHLBank Cincinnati



When U.S. President Herbert Hoover signed the Federal Home Loan Bank
bill on July 22, 1932, he created a system that would withstand dynamic
economic cycles to become a central part of America’s housing finance

industry. As the Federal Home Loan Bank System celebrates 75 years of service, we
offer a summary glance at the history, cooperative structure, and landmark
legislation that has shaped the Federal Home Loan Bank’s role in fulfilling its
housing finance mission.

The idea of a Home Loan Bank System can be traced back to 1918, when the U.S.
Building and Loan League made its case to Woodrow Wilson as World War I was
ending. Prior to the war, an average of 600,000 homes were being built annually 
to keep pace with population growth and replacement homes lost to fire and other
natural causes. To accommodate our returning soldiers, however, almost one million
new homes would need to be built – and financed.

Talks stalled as the roaring 1920s mitigated the need for government intervention.
Homeownership increased from 45.6 percent to 47.8 percent between 1920 and
1930. That course would soon reverse itself in the path of the Great Depression. In
March 1931, the National Association of Real Estate Boards and the U.S. Building
and Loan League conferred with President Hoover to recommend the establishment
of a Federal Home Loan Bank System (System). By December 1931, companion bills
were introduced in the Senate and House.

The President supported the legislation as a way to “relieve the present emergency,
prevent such an emergency from affecting our country in the future, and furnish
permanently to the homebuilding industry the same credit facilities already
furnished to the agricultural and commercial fields.” The bill was passed on July 16,
1932, and signed by the President six days later.

The bill dictated the creation of a Federal Home Loan Bank Board, which was to
consist of five U.S. citizens appointed by the President. The original Board members
pictured with President Hoover (third from left, opposite page) were, from left to
right, Nathan Adams of Dallas, Texas; Morton Bodfish of Chicago, Illinois; Franklin
W. Fort of East Orange, New Jersey; Dr. John M. Gries of Rosewood, Ohio; and
William E. Best of Pittsburgh, Pennsylvania. The group convened for the first time
on August 10, 1932.
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Members of the FHLBank’s first Board of Directors
were, from left to right: Frank M. Ransbottom, Home
Building Company, Roseville, Ohio; F.F. Van Deusen,
Union Savings and Loan Company, Cleveland, Ohio;
J.V. Davidson, Lumbermen’s Savings Assoc. and Corn
City Savings Assoc., Toledo, Ohio; Walter E. Julius;
C. A. Craig, National Life and Accident Insurance
Company, Nashville, Tennessee; Harry S. Cissell,
First National Bank Building, Springfield, Ohio;
Herman F. Cellarius, San Marco Building and Loan
Assoc., Cincinnati, Ohio; Charles S. Furber, Citizens
Building Assoc., Covington, Kentucky; James M.
McKay, The Home Savings and Loan Company of
Youngstown, Ohio; L. A. Hickman, Greater Louisville
Savings and Building Assoc., Louisville, Kentucky;
Charles J. Haase, Home Building and Loan Assoc.,
Memphis, Tennessee; Judge Richard C. Stoll, First
National Bank Building, Lexington, Kentucky.

Two of the Federal Home Loan Bank Board’s initial agenda items were to
determine the boundaries of the 12 Federal Home Loan Bank districts and to
select the cities in which these banks would be located. District No. 5, which

was to cover the states of Kentucky, Ohio and Tennessee, would be headquartered in
Cincinnati, Ohio. All 12 District Banks opened for business on October 15, 1932.

The Cincinnati Federal Home Loan Bank (FHLBank) was located at Fourth and
Race Streets downtown. Led by President Herman F. Cellarius and a staff of three,
the nascent FHLBank operated with an 11-member Board of Directors, appointed by
the Federal Home Loan Bank Board, $15 million in start up capital and 57
membership applications. By October 1933, the FHLBank declared its first dividend,
two percent, and held its first stockholders meeting. At year-end 1933, the FHLBank
recorded $19.6 million in assets and had 357 member institutions. 

A total of six Presidents have presided over the FHLBank’s steady growth for 75
years under a dynamic range of economic conditions including war, recession,
inflation, bull and bear markets, and real estate booms and busts. Specific to the
Fifth District have been shifts in industrial manufacturing, agricultural production
and Appalachian demographics. The FHLBank has successfully adapted to these and
other challenges.

The Presidents and their Boards of
Directors have credited the FHLBanks’
success to its membership service. The
cooperative structure of the System 
ensures active engagement between 
FHLBank management and member 
institutions.

THE FHLBANK CINCINNATI

The FHLBank opened
on October 15, 1932,

at Fourth and Race
Streets downtown

Cincinnati.

YEARS OF SERVICE: 
FHLBANK PRESIDENTS

1932-1935 (3 years)
Herman F. Cellarius

1936-1956 (21 years)
Walter D. Schultz

1957-1962 (6 years)
Walter E. Julius

1963-1975 (13 years)
Albert C. Crew

1976-2002 (27 years)
Charles L. Thiemann

2003-present

David H. Hehman

FHLBANK MEMBERSHIP and ASSETS

Year End Membership Assets

1933 357 $19.6 m
1943 564 $33.9 m
1953 579 $113.7 m
1963 617 $387.8 m
1973 558 $1.3 b
1983 394 $4.6 b
1993 582 $10.0 b
2003 755 $77.1 b
2006 741 $81.4 b



The FHLBank is honored to count as one of
its member institutions The Home Savings
and Loan Company of Youngstown, Ohio.

Not only did founder James M. McKay sit on the
FHLBank's original Board of Directors, but this
successful institution has been headed by four
generations of the McKay family.
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James M. McKay (pictured above fourth from
right) started Home Savings in a small office in
Youngstown in January 1889. Forty-three years
later, he was one of 12 executives appointed to 
sit on the FHLBank's first Board of Directors. 
The group convened October 11, 1932, four 
days before the FHLBank opened its doors in
downtown Cincinnati. James M. enjoyed a 
61-year career at the company he founded.

J. Russell was the second McKay
to take the helm at Home
Savings, and he spent 51 years
as part of the growing family
business.

Third-generation President and
Chairman Donald B. McKay
became one of the most
respected businessmen in
northeast Ohio during his 
41-year tenure.

Douglas M. McKay is the current
Chair and CEO of Home Savings.
He began his employment as a
teller 39 years ago and was elected
President and Chair in 1995.

Doug believes a strong
commitment to the communities
Home Savings serves is the key
to the bank’s longevity and
growth. He is also convinced
FHLBank credit and housing
services have contributed to this
success, especially in recent
years following the conversion
from a mutual to a stock company.

“We've grown two-and-a-
half times our asset size since
1998 when we decided to
become a public company,"
explained the leader of this 
$2.7 billion thrift. “This expansion
would not have been possible
without the services of the
FHLBank. Both Home Savings
and the FHLBank have had to
adapt to many changes
throughout the years. We
changed together and are still
enjoying our partnership today.”

Douglas M. McKay 

J. Russell McKay 

“Home Savings’

expansion would not

have been possible

without the services

of the FHLBank.”

GENERATIONS OF CHANGE:
the Four McKays and Their Partnership with the FHLBank

Donald B. McKay 



The booming post-World War II economy combined with greater lending
innovation, such as the 30-year fixed-rate mortgage, ushered in the 20th
century’s most dramatic rise in homeownership rates, from 43.6 percent in

1940, to 61.9 percent in 1960. The next 20-year period saw modest but steady
homeownership growth, from 61.9 percent to 64.6 percent in 1980.

In the early 1980s high inflation, rising interest rates, speculative investments
and a recession collided, contributing to the failure of hundreds of savings and loan
institutions and a slight drop in homeownership from 64.6 percent in 1980 to 64.4
percent in 1990. In response, President George H. W. Bush signed into law the
Financial Institutions Reform, Recovery and Enforcement Act of 1989 (FIRREA), the
first piece of legislation to significantly alter the System since its creation. FIRREA
opened FHLBank membership to commercial banks and credit unions, established the
Affordable Housing Program (AHP), required an ongoing capital transfer “tax” to the
Resolution Funding Corporation, and reassigned all System supervisory duties to a
separately operated Office of Thrift Supervision.

Aggressive membership recruitment combined with strong FHLBank Board and
management leadership helped to smooth the transition to this new era. Commercial
banks and credit unions were eventually attracted to the benefits of membership
including a growing selection of advances, specifically the Mortgage Matched
Advance, as well as participation in our new AHP. From 1989 through 1999,
membership jumped from 342 to 760. Total assets rose from $6.3 billion at year-end
1989, to $48.1 billion at year-end 1999.

The congressionally mandated AHP required the FHLBank to set aside five
percent of net earnings annually, increased to 10 percent by 1995, to be used by
member institutions to finance housing for persons at or below 80 percent of area
median income. The FHLBank would receive guidance through an Advisory Council,
appointed by the FHLBank Board of Directors, to help identify District priorities. In
1990, the first year of operation, the FHLBank awarded $2.4 million to 29 members
to create 754 units of housing. Through 2006, the FHLBank had committed a
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FHLBank Board members and
employees helped Habitat for

Humanity-Greater Columbus and
other partners build a home on

the grounds of the Ohio State
Fair in summer 2005.

LANDMARK LEGISLATION



cumulative total of $243 million to hundreds of members for the creation of 39,055
units of housing.

The AHP emerged as a nationally-recognized model for successful regional
delivery of targeted housing dollars. From the Fifth District’s Appalachian
mountains to its urban centers and all points in between, the AHP became a vehicle
through which members, FHLBank staff, and a growing network of partners could
directly address housing needs in the many and varied communities served.

As the FHLBank successfully emerged from FIRREA, a new bill was signed into
law by President Bill Clinton, the Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999. The FHLBank
System Modernization section of this bill established uniform minimum capital
standards for the 12 FHLBanks and required each District FHLBank to submit a
capital stock plan for approval by the Federal Housing Finance Board (Finance
Board). The bill would further ease membership restrictions for smaller community
financial institutions and devolve FHLBank System operations from the regulator to
the District Boards. The FHLBank management and Board acted quickly to establish
a capital plan that was shared with members through district meetings and a public
Finance Board hearing. The plan was unanimously approved by the Finance Board
and implemented in 2002.

New legislation is currently under debate seeking regulatory reform of the
housing Government-Sponsored Enterprises, including the System. While we remain
vigilant regarding the outcome of these discussions, we continue to focus on service
to our members.

Seventy-five years after the FHLBank opened its doors, our housing finance
mission remains as relevant now as it was then. With today’s homeownership rate
near 70 percent, housing advocates and citizens alike recognize that safe, secure
housing leads to job stability, improved school performance, neighborhood
empowerment and stronger communities. The FHLBank is proud to be part of that
tradition and looks forward to carrying out our mission in the years ahead.

19

STRENGTHENS COMMUNITIES

Today we are located just four blocks east
of our original location in the Atrium Two
building at Fourth and Sycamore.



(front row, from left to right)

Stacey Epperson, Executive Director, Frontier Housing, Inc., Morehead, Kentucky

Grady Appleton, Council Vice Chair, Executive Director, East Akron Neighborhood Development Corp., Akron, Ohio

Don Ball, Chairman, Ball Homes, Inc., Lexington, Kentucky

Marie Williams, Director of Housing and Recovery Services, Tennessee Dept. 
of Mental Health and Developmental Disabilities, Nashville, Tennessee

Garry Watkins, Partner, Wabuck Development Company, Leitchfield, Kentucky

Cecil Dunn, Council Chair, Executive Director, HOPE Center, Inc., Lexington, Kentucky

Susan Weaver, CEO/Executive Director, Community Housing Network, Inc., Columbus, Ohio

(back row, from left to right)

Larry West, Executive Director, Scott Appalachian Industries, Huntsville, Tennessee

Ken Danter, President, The Danter Company, Columbus, Ohio

Tim Bolding, Executive Director, United Housing, Memphis, Tennessee

Jerry Rickett, President/CEO, Kentucky Highlands Investment Corp., London, Kentucky

Mark Milligan, President, The Affordable Trust for Columbus and Franklin County, Columbus, Ohio

José González, Executive Director, Conexión Américas, Nashville, Tennessee

(not pictured)

Larry Murtaugh, President, Catholic Charities Facilities Corp., Cleveland, Ohio

Reverend Kenneth Robinson, M.D., Commissioner, Tennessee Department of Health, Nashville, Tennessee
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David H. Hehman President and CEO
Andrew S. Howell Executive Vice President, Mission Asset Activity

Donald R. Able Senior Vice President, Controller
Carole L. Cossé Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
Paul J. Imwalle Senior Vice President, Member Services
R. Kyle Lawler Senior Vice President, Mortgage Purchase Program

Carol M. Peterson Senior Vice President, Housing and Community Investment 
Thomas F. Schlager Senior Vice President, Bank Operations

Stephen J. Sponaugle Senior Vice President, Chief Risk Officer

Thomas J. Ciresi Vice President, Member Services
Melissa D. Dallas Vice President, Public Affairs
David C. Eastland Vice President, Credit Risk Management

Richard T. Fitzpatric Vice President, Human Resources and Administration
S.G. Frank Haas, II Vice President, Risk Management
Robin C. McNulty Vice President, Mortgage Purchase Program
W. Jeff Reynolds Vice President, Housing and Community Investment

Keith B. Thurman Vice President, Director of Information Systems
Maura H. Wolf Vice President, Treasurer

Damon v. Allen Assistant Vice President, Credit Financial Analysis
Lori A. Aman Assistant Vice President, Capital Markets

Nancy J. Baker Assistant Vice President, Member Services
J. Christopher Bates Assistant Vice President, Financial Reporting

Jerome C. Bauer Assistant Vice President, Investment Services
Diane C. Bender Assistant Vice President, Human Resources

Todd W. Berry Assistant Vice President, Marketing
Jeffery S. Berryman Assistant Vice President, Credit Operations
John J. Byczkowski Assistant Vice President, Communications
Debbra M. DeMaris Assistant Vice President, Accounting Operations

Paul J. Doyle Assistant Vice President, Systems and Programming
Mary H. Estell Assistant Vice President, Demand Deposit Services

Jeffrey A. Fields Assistant Vice President, Business Development
Tami L. Hendrickson Assistant Vice President, Capital Markets

Thomas C. Muth Assistant Vice President, Marketing
James J. O'Toole Assistant Vice President, Marketing

Michael J. Byrnes Administrative Services Officer
Connie L. Gabbard Corporate Secretary

Darren M. Kuntz Funding Officer, Capital Markets
Brenda A. Pierre Affordable Housing Program Officer
Janice L. Weber Technical Support Officer

James G. Dooley, Sr. Vice President, Director-Internal Audit
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March 15, 2007

The Audit Committee of the Board of Directors of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (FHLBank) for 2006 
was composed of five Directors, one who represents the public sector and four who represent industry members. The
members of the Audit Committee at year-end 2006 were James R. Powell, Chair; Richard C. Baylor; Michael R. Melvin;
R. Stan Puckett; and Stephen B. Smith.

The 2007 Audit Committee is comprised of five Directors, one who represents the public sector and four who represent
industry members. Both the 2006 and 2007 Audit Committee members are independent, as defined by the Federal
Housing Finance Board.

The Audit Committee oversees the FHLBank's financial reporting process; reviews compliance with laws, regulations,
policies and procedures; and evaluates the adequacy of administrative, operating, and internal accounting controls. 
The Audit Committee has adopted and is governed by a written charter as posted on the FHLBank’s Web site at
www.fhlbcin.com. The Audit Committee met on 11 occasions to satisfy its responsibilities during 2006 in compliance
with the charter. In fulfilling its responsibilities under its chater, the Audit Committee has reviewed and discussed the
audited financial statements with management and the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm. The Audit
Committee also discussed with the Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm the matters required to be discussed
by Statement on Auditing Standards (SAS) No. 61 and SAS No. 90, Audit Committee Communications. The Committee
also received the written disclosures and the letter from the Indepedent Registered Public Accounting Firm required 
by Independence Standard Board Statement No. 1, and discussed with the auditors the Firm's independence.

Based on the review and discussions referred to above, the 2007 Audit Committee recommended to the Board of
Directors that the FHLBank’s audited financial statements for the fiscal year ended December 31, 2006, be included 
in the Annual Report and in the FHLBank’s annual report on Form 10-K filed with the Securities and Exchange
Commission.

James R. Powell, Chair
Richard C. Baylor
R. Stan Puckett
Stephen B. Smith
Billie W. Wade

Audit Committee Letter
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To the Board of Directors and Shareholders of
the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati:

In our opinion, the accompanying statements of condition and the related statements of income, capital and of cash flows present
fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of the Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (the “FHLBank") at December 31,
2006 and 2005, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31,
2006, in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. These financial statements are
the responsibility of the FHLBank’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on
our audits. We conducted our audits of these statements in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting
Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence
supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements, assessing the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management, and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a
reasonable basis for our opinion.

February 26, 2007

PricewaterhouseCoopers LLP
100 East Broad Street
Suite 2100
Columbus OH 43215
Telephone: (614) 225-8700
Facsimile: (614) 224-1044

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
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STATEMENTS OF CONDITION
(in thousands, except par value)

December 31,
2006 2005

ASSETS
Cash and due from banks (Note 3) $        4,022 $ 4,948

Interest-bearing deposits 6,535,562 6,284,166

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (Note 4) 1,150,000 1,000,000

Federal funds sold 9,641,700 7,487,900

Trading securities (Note 5) 4,602 6,187

Available-for-sale securities (a) (Note 6) 1,188,450 1,151,271

Held-to-maturity securities includes $0 and $0 pledged as collateral

in 2006 and 2005 that may be repledged (b) (Note 7) 12,099,348 12,290,770

Advances (Note 8) 41,956,538 40,261,623

Mortgage loans held for portfolio, net (Note 11) 8,460,716 8,418,139

Accrued interest receivable 300,555 238,625

Premises, software, and equipment 8,412 7,999

Derivative assets (Note 17) 12,555 65

Other assets 24,210 28,157

TOTAL ASSETS $ 81,386,670 $ 77,179,850

LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL
Deposits (Note 12):

Interest bearing $ 926,874 $ 910,453

Non-interest bearing 360 264

Total deposits 927,234 910,717

Consolidated Obligations, net (Note 13):

Discount Notes 21,946,379 17,577,416

Bonds 53,239,244 53,520,279

Total Consolidated Obligations, net 75,185,623 71,097,695

Mandatorily redeemable capital stock (Note 14) 137,109 418,381

Accrued interest payable 559,358 436,981

Affordable Housing Program (Note 9) 96,240 91,035

Payable to REFCORP (Note 10) 17,205 15,773

Derivative liabilities (Note 17) 107,559 427,727

Other liabilities 449,493 72,479

Total liabilities 77,479,821 73,470,788

Commitments and contingencies (Note 19)

CAPITAL (Note 14)

Capital stock Class B putable ($100 par value) issued and outstanding shares:

36,576 and 35,035 shares in 2006 and 2005 3,657,645 3,503,481

Retained earnings 255,529 207,785

Accumulated other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized (loss) gain on available-for-sale securities (Note 6) (531) 1,882

Other (Note 15) (5,794) (4,086)

Total capital 3,906,849 3,709,062

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND CAPITAL $ 81,386,670 $ 77,179,850

(a) Amortized cost: $1,188,981 and $1,149,389 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

(b) Fair values: $11,822,438 and $12,036,737 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF INCOME
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

INTEREST INCOME:
Advances $ 2,290,444 $ 1,526,609 $  770,420

Prepayment fees on Advances, net 5,841 337 69,244

Interest-bearing deposits 233,671 152,416 90,825

Securities purchased under agreements to resell 54,332 22,369 750

Federal funds sold 309,483 224,615 104,565

Trading securities 262 289 406

Available-for-sale securities 59,619 45,622 15,153

Held-to-maturity securities 548,569 536,644 496,076

Mortgage loans held for portfolio 430,416 428,033 405,326

Loans to other FHLBanks 465 433 769

Total interest income 3,933,102 2,937,367 1,953,534

INTEREST EXPENSE:
Consolidated Obligations – Discount Notes 924,690 676,545 371,855

Consolidated Obligations – Bonds 2,566,112 1,878,316 1,265,418

Deposits 42,562 29,177 12,819

Borrowings from other FHLBanks 20 – 19

Mandatorily redeemable capital stock 13,162 13,335 1,350

Other borrowings 120 6 108

Total interest expense 3,546,666 2,597,379 1,651,569

NET INTEREST INCOME 386,436 339,988 301,965

OTHER INCOME:
Service fees 1,268 1,533 1,651

Net gain (loss) on trading securities 17 (35) (33)

Net realized loss from sale of available-for-sale securities – – (3)

Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities 1,929 (648) 39,555

Other, net 2,467 2,260 2,499

Total other income 5,681 3,110 43,669

OTHER EXPENSE:
Compensation and benefits 24,783 21,700 18,131

Other operating 11,655 11,959 10,413

Finance Board 2,920 2,890 2,468

Office of Finance 2,115 2,222 2,226

Other 4,690 3,846 3,210

Total other expense 46,163 42,617 36,448

INCOME BEFORE ASSESSMENTS 345,954 300,481 309,186

Affordable Housing Program 29,584 25,890 25,377

REFCORP 63,274 54,918 56,762

Total assessments 92,858 80,808 82,139

NET INCOME $ 253,096 $ 219,673 $ 227,047

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Financial Statements



STATEMENTS OF CAPITAL
(in thousands)

Accumulated
Capital Stock Other

Class B* Retained Comprehensive Total
Shares Par Value Earnings Income Capital

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2003 36,453 $ 3,645,253 $   92,150 $ (3,730) $ 3,733,673

Proceeds from sale of capital stock 902 90,193 90,193

Net reclassified to mandatorily

redeemable capital stock (871) (87,074) (87,074)

Comprehensive income:

Net income 227,047 227,047

Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities (82) (82)

Other (Note 15) (417) (417)

Total other comprehensive income (499) (499)

Total comprehensive income 226,548

Dividends on capital stock:

Cash (242) (242)

Stock 1,515 151,480 (151,415) 65

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2004 37,999 3,799,852 167,540 (4,229) 3,963,163

Proceeds from sale of capital stock 246 24,569 24,569

Net reclassified to mandatorily

redeemable capital stock (4,973) (497,254) (497,254)

Comprehensive income:

Net income 219,673 219,673

Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities 1,972 1,972

Other (Note 15) 53 53

Total other comprehensive income 2,025 2,025

Total comprehensive income 221,698

Dividends on capital stock:

Cash (149) (149)

Stock 1,763 176,314 (179,279) (2,965)

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2005 35,035 3,503,481 207,785 (2,204) 3,709,062

Proceeds from sale of capital stock 382 38,258 38,258

Net reclassified to mandatorily 

redeemable capital stock (928) (92,764) (92,764)

Comprehensive income:

Net income 253,096 253,096

Other comprehensive income:

Net unrealized loss on

available-for-sale securities (2,413) (2,413)

Other (Note 15) 44 44

Total other comprehensive income (2,369) (2,369)

Total comprehensive income 250,727

Adjustment to initially apply

SFAS 158 (Note 15) (1,752) (1,752)

Dividends on capital stock:

Cash (167) (167)

Stock 2,087 208,670 (205,185) 3,485

BALANCE, DECEMBER 31, 2006 36,576 $ 3,657,645 $ 255,529 $ (6,325) $ 3,906,849

*Putable (Note 14)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $     253,096 $    219,673 $    227,047

Adjustments to reconcile net income 

to net cash provided by operating activities:

Depreciation and amortization (36,058) (16,393) 81,768

Change in net fair value adjustment on derivative and

hedging activities (75,630) 517 (88,383)

Other adjustments 13,130 13,325 1,242

Net change in:

Trading securities 1,585 2,276 3,456

Accrued interest receivable (61,930) (52,797) 15,200

Other assets (1,936) 1,599 (735)

Accrued interest payable 122,377 47,523 39,823

Other liabilities 18,726 18,099 20,610

Total adjustments (19,736) 14,149 72,981

Net cash provided by operating activities 233,360 233,822 300,028

INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Net change in:

Interest-bearing deposits (251,396) (502,900) 504,072

Securities purchased under agreements to resell (150,000) (300,000) (700,000)

Federal funds sold (2,153,800) 54,900 (292,300)

Premises, software and equipment (2,369) (3,209) (2,846)

Available-for-sale securities:

Proceeds 108,395,000 96,735,645 72,037,510

Purchases (108,374,973) (96,928,730) (72,110,521)

Held-to-maturity securities:

Net decrease in short-term (5,521) (3,384) (1,955)

Proceeds from long-term 2,142,008 2,757,179 2,989,295

Purchases of long-term (1,575,562) (3,319,993) (3,841,780)

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

Financial Statements
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STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS (continued from previous page)

(in thousands)

For the Years Ended December 31,
2006 2005 2004

Advances:

Proceeds $  1,974,813,063 $  2,261,563,078 $  2,325,820,033

Made (1,976,598,421) (2,260,800,609) (2,324,944,227)

Mortgage loans held for portfolio:

Proceeds 1,105,720 1,694,935 2,004,810

Purchases (1,164,375) (1,760,102) (2,307,281)

Net cash used in investing activities (3,820,626) (813,190) (845,190)

FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase (decrease) in deposits and pass-through reserves 16,517 (130,463) (377,253)

Net proceeds from issuance of Consolidated Obligations:

Discount notes 821,869,538 951,365,321 826,021,476

Bonds (including $0, $85,734 and $349,542 transferred

from other FHLBanks) 20,410,899 16,698,550 33,206,055

Payments for maturing and retiring Consolidated Obligations:

Discount notes (817,494,689) (952,423,677) (836,841,046)

Bonds (20,870,337) (14,831,592) (21,495,520)

Proceeds from issuance of capital stock 38,258 24,569 90,193

Payments for redemption of mandatorily redeemable capital stock (383,679) (129,505) (53,907)

Cash dividends paid (167) (149) (242)

Net cash provided by financing activities 3,586,340 573,054 549,756

Net (decrease) increase in cash and cash equivalents (926) (6,314) 4,594

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,948 11,262 6,668

Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year $ 4,022 $ 4,948 $           11,262

Supplemental Disclosures:

Interest paid $ 3,466,937 $ 2,501,909 $ 1,582,784

AHP payments, net $ 24,379 $ 23,774 $ 22,090

REFCORP assessments paid $ 61,842 $ 54,255 $ 53,422

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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Notes to Financial Statements

Background Information

The Federal Home Loan Bank of Cincinnati (the FHLBank), a federally chartered corporation, is one of 12 District
Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLBanks). The FHLBanks serve the public by enhancing the availability of credit for
residential mortgages and targeted community development. The FHLBank provides a readily available, low-cost source
of funds to its member institutions. The FHLBank is a cooperative, which means that current members own nearly all
of the outstanding capital stock of the FHLBank and may receive dividends on their investment. Regulated financial
depositories and insurance companies engaged in residential housing finance may apply for membership. State and
local housing authorities that meet certain statutory criteria may also borrow from the FHLBank; while eligible to
borrow, housing authorities are not members of the FHLBank and, as such, are not required to hold capital stock.

All members must purchase stock in the FHLBank. Members must own capital stock in the FHLBank based on the
amount of their total assets. Each member may be required to purchase activity-based capital stock as it engages in
certain business activities with the FHLBank. Former members own the remaining capital stock to support business
transactions still carried on the FHLBank’s Statements of Condition. As a result of these requirements, the FHLBank
conducts business with stockholders in the normal course of business. For financial statement purposes, the FHLBank
defines related parties as those members with more than 10 percent of the voting interests of the FHLBank capital
stock outstanding. See Note 21 for more information relating to transactions with stockholders.

The Federal Housing Finance Board (Finance Board), an independent agency in the executive branch of the U.S.
government, supervises and regulates the FHLBanks and the Office of Finance. The Office of Finance is a joint office of
the FHLBanks established by the Finance Board to facilitate the issuance and servicing of the Consolidated Obligations
of the FHLBanks and to prepare a combined financial report of all 12 FHLBanks. The Finance Board’s principal purpose
is to ensure that the FHLBanks operate in a safe and sound manner. In addition, the Finance Board ensures that the
FHLBanks carry out their housing finance mission, remain adequately capitalized, and can raise funds in the capital
markets. Also, the Finance Board establishes policies and regulations covering the operations of the FHLBanks. Each
FHLBank operates as a separate entity with its own management, employees, and board of directors. The FHLBank does
not have any special purpose entities or any other type of off-balance sheet conduits.

As provided by the Federal Home Loan Bank Act of 1932, as amended (the Act), or Finance Board Regulation, the
FHLBanks’ debt instruments (Consolidated Obligations) are backed only by the financial resources of  the FHLBanks
and are the primary source of funds for the FHLBanks. Deposits, other borrowings, and capital stock issued to members
provide other funds. The FHLBank primarily uses these funds to provide Advances to members and to purchase loans
from members through its Mortgage Purchase Program. Some FHLBanks also provide member institutions with
correspondent services, such as wire transfer, security safekeeping, and settlement.

Note 1—Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Use of Estimates. The preparation of financial statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (GAAP) requires management to make assumptions and estimates. These assumptions
and estimates affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities,
and the reported amounts of income and expenses. Actual results could differ from these estimates.

Interest Bearing Deposits in Banks, Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell (Resale Agreements), and Federal
Funds Sold. These investments provide short-term liquidity and are carried at cost. The FHLBank treats securities
purchased under agreements to resell as collateralized financings.

Investment Securities. The FHLBank classifies certain investments acquired for purposes of liquidity and asset/liability
management as trading and carries them at fair value. The FHLBank records changes in the fair value of these
investments through other income. However, the FHLBank does not participate in speculative trading practices and
holds these investments indefinitely as management periodically evaluates its liquidity needs. 

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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Notes to Financial Statements

The FHLBank classifies certain investments that it may sell before maturity as available-for-sale and carries them at
fair value. The change in fair value of the available-for-sale securities is recorded in other comprehensive income as a
net unrealized gain or loss on available-for-sale securities. 

The FHLBank carries, at cost, investments that it has both the ability and intent to hold to maturity (classified as held-
to-maturity on the Statements of Condition), adjusted for the amortization of premiums and accretion of discounts
using the level-yield method. 

Under Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (SFAS) No. 115, Accounting for Certain Investments in Debt and
Equity Securities (SFAS 115), changes in circumstances may cause the FHLBank to change its intent to hold a security
to maturity without calling into question its intent to hold other debt securities to maturity in the future. Thus, the sale
or transfer of a held-to-maturity security due to certain changes in circumstances, such as evidence of significant
deterioration in the issuer's creditworthiness or changes in regulatory requirements, is not considered to be inconsistent
with its original classification. Other events that are isolated, nonrecurring, and unusual for the FHLBank that could not
have been reasonably anticipated may cause the FHLBank to sell or transfer a held-to-maturity security without
necessarily calling into question its intent to hold other debt securities to maturity. 

In addition, in accordance with SFAS 115, sales of debt securities that meet either of the following two conditions may
be considered as maturities for purposes of the classification of securities:  (1) the sale occurs near enough to its
maturity date (or call date if exercise of the call is probable) that interest rate risk is substantially eliminated as a
pricing factor and the changes in market interest rates would not have a significant effect on the security's fair value,
or (2) the sale of the security occurs after the FHLBank has already collected a substantial portion (at least 85 percent)
of the principal outstanding at acquisition due either to prepayments on the security or to scheduled payments on the
security payable in equal installments (both principal and interest) over its term. The FHLBank has not sold any
securities out of its held-to-maturity portfolio during 2006, 2005 or 2004.

The FHLBank computes the amortization and accretion of premiums and discounts on mortgage-backed securities and
other investments with a term of greater than one year using the level-yield method over the estimated cash flows of
the securities. This method requires a retrospective adjustment of the level yield each time the FHLBank changes the
estimated cash flows as if the new estimate had been known since the original acquisition date of the securities. The
FHLBank uses nationally recognized, market-tested third party prepayment models to project estimated cash flows. The
FHLBank computes the amortization and accretion of premiums and discounts on other investments with a term of one
year or less using the straight-line method to the contractual maturity of the securities due to their short term nature.
Analyses of the straight-line compared to the level-yield method have been performed by the FHLBank and the
FHLBank has determined that the impact to the financial statements for each period reported, taken individually and as
a whole, is not material.

The FHLBank computes gains and losses on sales of investment securities using the specific identification method and
includes these gains and losses in other income.

The FHLBank regularly evaluates outstanding investments for changes in fair value and records impairment when a
decline in fair value is deemed to be other than temporary. An investment is deemed impaired if the fair value of the
investment is less than its amortized cost. After the investment is determined to be impaired, the FHLBank evaluates
whether this decline in value is other than temporary. When evaluating whether the impairment is other than
temporary, the FHLBank takes into consideration factors that include, but are not limited to, the creditworthiness of the
issuer and the underlying collateral; the length of time and extent that fair value has been less than amortized cost;
and the FHLBank’s intent and ability to hold the investment for a sufficient amount of time to recover the unrealized
losses. If there is an other-than-temporary impairment in value of an investment, the decline in value is recognized as
a loss and presented in the Statements of Income as other income. The FHLBank did not experience any other-than-
temporary impairment in value of investments during 2006, 2005, or 2004.

Advances. The FHLBank presents Advances (loans to members) net of unearned commitment fees and discounts on
Advances for the Affordable Housing Program (AHP), as discussed below. The FHLBank amortizes the premiums and
discounts on Advances to interest income using the level-yield method. The FHLBank credits interest on Advances to
income as earned. Following the requirements of the Act, the FHLBank obtains sufficient collateral on Advances to
protect it from losses. The Act limits eligible collateral to certain investment securities, residential mortgage loans, cash
or deposits with the FHLBank, and other eligible real estate-related assets. As Note 8 more fully describes, community
financial institutions (FDIC-insured institutions with average assets over the preceding three-year period of $587
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million or less during 2006) are eligible to utilize expanded statutory collateral rules that include secured small
business and agricultural loans and securities representing a whole interest in such secured loans. The FHLBank has not
incurred any credit losses on Advances since its inception. Based upon the collateral held as security for the Advances
and the repayment history of the FHLBank’s Advances, management believes that an allowance for credit losses on
Advances is unnecessary.

Mortgage Loans Held for Portfolio. The FHLBank has a Mortgage Purchase Program under which it invests in
government (FHA-insured) and conventional residential mortgage loans purchased directly from participating members.
The FHLBank manages the liquidity and interest rate risk of the loans, while the members either retain or release the
servicing activities. If participating in the servicing-released program, a member concurrently sells the servicing of the
mortgage loans to an unrelated designated mortgage service provider. The FHLBank and the member share in the credit
risk on conventional loans, with the member assuming a first loss obligation equivalent to the greater of expected
losses or the required deductible for the supplemental mortgage insurance policy and with the FHLBank assuming
credit losses in excess of mortgage insurance coverage, supplemental mortgage insurance coverage, and the member’s
obligation.

To ensure the retention of credit risk on conventional loans originated or acquired by a member, a Lender Risk Account
(LRA) is funded by the FHLBank as a portion of the purchase proceeds of the loans to cover, at a minimum, the
expected losses. This account is established to conform to Finance Board Regulations for all conventional Mortgage
Purchase Programs that stipulate the member is responsible for all expected losses on the mortgages being sold to the
FHLBank. In order to comply with this Regulation, the FHLBank evaluates, through use of a Nationally Recognized
Statistical Rating Organization (NRSRO) model, the proposed conventional mortgages to be sold (either the specific
portfolio or a representative sample) to determine the amount of expected losses that will occur. The expected losses
represent the amount to be deposited into the LRA and these funds are used to offset any losses that may occur. After
five years, excess funds over required balances are distributed to the member in accordance with a step-down schedule
that is established at the time of a Master Commitment Contract. No LRA balance is required after eleven years. The
LRA is recorded in other liabilities and totaled $45,961,000 and $42,472,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

In addition to the expected losses covered by the LRA, the member selling conventional loans is required to purchase
Supplemental Mortgage Insurance (SMI) and to designate the FHLBank as the beneficiary as an enhancement to cover
losses over and above losses covered by the LRA. The LRA and SMI are calculated to provide, at a minimum, the
equivalent to an investment grade rating (e.g., AA credit rating) for the loans purchased. In the event the LRA and the
standard SMI policy do not provide sufficient loss protection to support the equivalent investment grade rating,
additional mortgage insurance coverage called SMI Plus also must be purchased by the member. This policy covers the
expected losses to achieve an investment grade rating equivalent to AA over and above the LRA and SMI.  

The FHLBank classifies mortgage loans as held for investment and, accordingly, reports them at their principal amount
outstanding net of unamortized premiums and discounts and unrealized gains and losses from loans initially classified
as mortgage loan commitments.

The FHLBank defers and amortizes mortgage premiums and discounts paid to and received by the FHLBank’s
participating members as interest income using the level-yield method over the estimated cash flows of the related
mortgage loans. Actual prepayment experience and estimates of future principal prepayments are used in calculating
the estimated cash flows of the mortgage loans. The FHLBank aggregates the mortgage loans by similar characteristics
(type, maturity, note rate and acquisition date) in determining prepayment estimates. The estimated cash flow method
requires a retrospective adjustment each time the FHLBank changes the estimated amounts as if the new estimate had
been known since the original acquisition date of the assets. The FHLBank uses nationally recognized, market-tested
third party prepayment models to project estimated lives. 

The FHLBank may receive non-origination fees, called pair-off fees. Pair-off fees represent a make-whole provision and
are assessed when a member fails to deliver the quantity of loans committed to in the Mandatory Delivery Contracts.
The FHLBank includes the pair-off fees in determining the periodic mark to market adjustment of the Mandatory
Delivery Contracts, which is recorded in "Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities."

The FHLBank places certain conventional mortgage loans on nonaccrual status when the collection of the contractual
principal or interest is 90 days or more past due, unless the loan is well secured and in the process of collection. When
a conventional mortgage loan is placed on nonaccrual status, accrued but uncollected interest is charged against
interest income. The FHLBank generally records cash payments received on nonaccrual loans first as interest income
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and then as a reduction of principal as specified in the contractual agreement, unless the collection of the remaining
principal amount due is considered doubtful. Government-insured loans are not placed on nonaccrual status when the
collection of the contractual principal or interest is 90 days or more past due because of the (1) U.S. government
guarantee of the loans and (2) contractual obligation of the loan servicer. Also, conventional loans that are settled
monthly on a schedule/scheduled basis are not placed on nonaccrual status. Monthly settlement on a
schedule/scheduled basis means that the Participating Financial Institution (PFI) is obligated to remit the contractual
mortgage payments on mortgage loans sold to the FHLBank, regardless of whether or not the PFI received payment
from the mortgagee.

The FHLBank bases the allowance for credit losses on management’s estimate of credit losses inherent in the FHLBank’s
mortgage loan portfolio as of the Statement of Condition date. The FHLBank performs periodic reviews of its portfolio
to identify the losses inherent within the portfolio and to determine the likelihood of collection of the portfolio. The
overall allowance is determined by an analysis that includes consideration of various data observations such as past
performance, current performance, loan portfolio characteristics, collateral valuations, industry data, and prevailing
economic conditions. As a result of this analysis, the FHLBank has determined that each member’s obligation for losses
and the mortgage insurance coverage exceeds the inherent loss in the portfolio. Accordingly, no allowance for loan
losses is considered necessary.  

Premises, Software and Equipment. The FHLBank records premises, software and equipment at cost less accumulated
depreciation and amortization. The FHLBank’s accumulated depreciation and amortization related to these items was
$9,760,000 and $8,317,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005. The FHLBank computes depreciation on the straight-line
method over the estimated useful lives of relevant assets ranging from three to ten years. Leasehold improvements that
are placed in service significantly after and not contemplated at or near the beginning of the lease term are amortized
over the shorter of the useful life of the asset or a term that includes required lease periods and renewals that are
deemed to be reasonably assured at the date the leasehold improvements are purchased. The FHLBank capitalizes
improvements and major renewals but expenses ordinary maintenance and repairs when incurred. Depreciation and
amortization expense for premises, software and equipment was $1,954,000, $1,693,000, and $1,345,000 for the years
ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004. The FHLBank includes gains and losses on disposal of premises, software
and equipment in other income. The net realized gain (loss) on disposal of premises, software and equipment was
$(2,000), $(1,000), and $4,000 in 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Cost of computer software developed or obtained for internal use is accounted for in accordance with Statement of
Position No. 98-1, Accounting for the Costs of Computer Software Developed or Obtained for Internal Use (SOP 98-1).
SOP 98-1 requires the cost of purchased software and certain costs incurred in developing computer software for
internal use to be capitalized and amortized over future periods. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had
$4,367,000 and $3,910,000 in unamortized computer software costs included in FHLBank premises, software and
equipment. Amortization of computer software costs charged to expense was $964,000, $777,000, and $585,000 for the
years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Derivatives. Accounting for derivatives is addressed in SFAS No. 133, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities, as amended by SFAS No. 137, Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities—
Deferral of Effective Date of FASB Statement No. 133, SFAS No. 138, Accounting for Certain Derivative Instruments
and Certain Hedging Activities, and SFAS No. 149, Amendment of Statement 133 on Derivative Instruments and
Hedging Activities (SFAS 133). All derivatives are recognized on the Statements of Condition at their fair values. The
FHLBank has two primary objectives when using derivatives:

1. hedging market risk exposure; and 

2. providing intermediation between the preferences of the capital markets for the kinds of debt securities in which
they want to invest and the preferences of member institutions for the kinds of Advances they want to hold and
the kinds of mortgage loans they want to sell. 

Each derivative is designated as one of the following:

1. a hedge of the fair value of a recognized asset or liability (a “fair value" hedge); or

2. a non-qualifying hedge of an asset or liability (“economic hedge”) for asset/liability management purposes.



Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is designated and qualifies as a fair value hedge, along with changes in
the fair value of the hedged asset or liability that are attributable to the hedged risk, are recorded in other income as
“Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities.”  

Any hedge ineffectiveness (which represents the amount by which the change in the fair value of the derivative differs
from the change in the fair value of the hedged item or the variability in the cash flows of the forecasted transaction)
on fair value hedges is reflected in other income as “Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities.” 

Changes in the fair value of a derivative not qualifying as a hedge are recorded in current period earnings with no fair
value adjustment to an asset or liability. 

The differentials between accruals of interest receivables and payables on derivatives that are designated and qualify as
fair value hedges are recognized as adjustments to the income or expense of the designated underlying investment
securities, Advances, Consolidated Obligations or other financial instruments. The differentials between accruals of
interest receivables and payables on economic hedges are recognized in other income as “Net gain (loss) on derivatives
and hedging activities.” Cash flows associated with economic hedges are reflected as cash flows from operating
activities in the Statements of Cash Flows.

The FHLBank may issue debt, may make Advances and may purchase financial instruments in which a derivative
instrument is “embedded.” Upon execution of these transactions, the FHLBank assesses whether the economic
characteristics of the embedded derivative are clearly and closely related to the economic characteristics of the
remaining component of the Advance or debt (the host contract) and whether a separate, non-embedded instrument
with the same terms as the embedded instrument would meet the definition of a derivative instrument. When the
FHLBank determines that (1) the embedded derivative has economic characteristics that are not clearly and closely
related to the economic characteristics of the host contract and (2) a separate, stand-alone instrument with the same
terms would qualify as a derivative instrument, the embedded derivative is separated from the host contract, carried at
fair value, and designated as a stand-alone derivative instrument pursuant to an economic hedge. However, if the
entire contract (the host contract and the embedded derivative) is to be measured at fair value, with changes in fair
value reported in current earnings (such as an investment security classified as “trading” under SFAS 115), or if the
FHLBank cannot reliably identify and measure the embedded derivative for purposes of separating that derivative from
its host contract, the entire contract is carried on the Statements of Condition at fair value and no portion of the
contract is designated as a hedging instrument. 

If hedging relationships meet certain criteria specified in SFAS 133, they are eligible for hedge accounting and the
offsetting changes in fair value of the hedged items may be recorded in earnings. The application of hedge accounting
generally requires the FHLBank to evaluate the effectiveness of the hedging relationships on an ongoing basis and to
calculate the changes in fair value of the derivatives and related hedged items independently. This is known as the
“long-haul” method of accounting. Transactions that meet more stringent criteria qualify for the “shortcut” method of
hedge accounting in which an assumption can be made that the change in fair value of a hedged item exactly offsets
the change in value of the related derivative.

Derivatives are typically executed at the same time as the hedged Advances or Consolidated Obligations and the
FHLBank designates the hedged item in a qualifying hedge relationship as of the trade date. In many hedging
relationships, the FHLBank may designate the hedging relationship upon its commitment to disburse an Advance or
trade a Consolidated Obligation in which settlement occurs within the shortest period of time possible for the type of
instrument based on market settlement conventions. The FHLBank defines market settlement conventions for Advances
to be five business days or less and for Consolidated Obligations to be thirty calendar days or less, using a next
business day convention. The FHLBank records the changes in fair value of the derivative and the hedged item
beginning on the trade date. When the hedging relationship is designated on the trade date and the fair value of the
derivative is zero on that date, the FHLBank meets the criteria within SFAS 133 for applying the shortcut method
provided all the other criteria in paragraph 68 are also met.  

When hedge accounting is discontinued because the FHLBank determines that the derivative no longer qualifies as an
effective fair value hedge of an existing hedged item, the FHLBank continues to carry the derivative on the Statements
of Condition at its fair value, ceases to adjust the hedged asset or liability for changes in fair value, and amortizes the
cumulative basis adjustment on the hedged item into earnings using the level-yield method over the remaining life of
the hedged item.
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Mandatorily Redeemable Capital Stock. The FHLBank adopted SFAS 150, Accounting for Certain Financial Instruments
with Characteristics of both Liabilities and Equity (SFAS 150), effective as of January 1, 2004. See Note 14 for more
information. In compliance with SFAS 150, the FHLBank reclassifies the stock subject to redemption from equity to
liability upon expiration of the “grace period” after a member submits a written redemption request, gives notice of
intent to withdraw from membership, or attains non-member status by merger or acquisition, charter termination, or
involuntary termination from membership, since the member shares will then meet the definition of a mandatorily
redeemable financial instrument. Member shares meeting this definition are reclassified to a liability at fair value.
Dividends declared on member shares classified as a liability in accordance with SFAS 150 are accrued at the expected
dividend rate and reflected as interest expense in the Statements of Income. The repayment of mandatorily redeemable
financial instruments is reflected as cash outflows in the financing activities section of the Statements of Cash Flows
once redeemed. 

If a member cancels its written notice of redemption or notice of withdrawal, the FHLBank will reclassify mandatorily
redeemable capital stock from a liability to equity in compliance with SFAS 150. After the reclassification, dividends on
the capital stock will no longer be classified as interest expense.

Prepayment Fees. The FHLBank charges a member a prepayment fee when the member prepays certain Advances
before the original maturity. The FHLBank records prepayment fees, net of SFAS 133 basis adjustments included in the
book value of the Advances, as “Prepayment fees on Advances, net” in the interest income section of the Statements of
Income. In cases in which the FHLBank funds a new Advance concurrent with or within a short period of time of the
prepayment of an existing Advance, the FHLBank evaluates whether the new Advance meets the accounting criteria to
qualify as a modification of an existing Advance or as a new Advance in accordance with EITF Issue No. 01-7,
Creditor's Accounting for a Modification or Exchange of Debt Instruments, and SFAS 91, Accounting for Nonrefundable
Fees and Costs Associated with Originating or Acquiring Loans and Initial Direct Costs of Leases (SFAS 91). 

If the new Advance qualifies as a modification of the existing Advance, the net prepayment fee on the prepaid Advance
is deferred, recorded in the basis of the modified Advance, and amortized over the life of the modified Advance using
the level-yield method. This amortization is recorded in Advance interest income. 

For prepaid Advances that are hedged and meet the hedge accounting requirements of SFAS 133, the FHLBank
terminates the hedging relationship upon prepayment and records the associated fair value gains and losses, adjusted
for the prepayment fees, in interest income. If the FHLBank funds a new Advance to a member concurrent with or
within a short period of time after the prepayment of a previous Advance to that member, the FHLBank evaluates
whether the new Advance qualifies as a modification of the original hedged Advance, including analysis of (i) whether
the effective yield on the new Advance is at least equal to the effective yield for a comparable Advance to a similar
member that is not refinancing or restructuring and (ii) whether the modification of the original Advance is more than
minor. If the new Advance qualifies as a modification of the original hedged Advance, the fair value gains or losses of
the Advance and the prepayment fees are included in the carrying amount of the modified Advance, and gains or
losses and prepayment fees are amortized in interest income over the life of the modified Advance using the level-yield
method. If the modified Advance is also hedged and the hedge meets the hedging criteria in accordance with SFAS 133,
it is marked to fair value after the modification, and subsequent fair value changes are recorded in other income. The
amortization results in offsetting amounts being recorded in net interest income and in other income as “Net gain (loss)
on derivatives and hedging activities.” The basis adjustment amortization amounted to a decrease to net interest
income of $360,000, $1,254,000, and $37,560,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004.

If the FHLBank determines that the transaction does not qualify as a modification of an existing Advance, it is treated
as an Advance termination with subsequent funding of a new Advance and the net fees are recorded in interest income
as “Prepayment fees on Advances, net.”

Commitment Fees. The FHLBank defers commitment fees for Advances and amortizes them to interest income over the
life of the Advance using the level-yield method. Refundable fees are deferred until the commitment expires or until
the Advance is made. The FHLBank records commitment fees for Standby Letters of Credit as a deferred credit when it
receives the fees and amortizes them using the straight-line method over the term of the Standby Letter of Credit. The
FHLBank’s management believes that the likelihood of Standby Letters of Credit being drawn upon is remote based
upon past experience.

Concessions on Consolidated Obligations. The FHLBank defers and amortizes, using the level-yield method, the
amounts paid to dealers in connection with the sale of Consolidated Obligation Bonds over the terms to maturity or
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estimated cash flows of the Consolidated Obligation Bonds. The Office of Finance prorates the amount of the
concession to the FHLBank based upon the percentage of the debt issued that is assumed by the FHLBank. Unamortized
Bond concessions were $18,565,000 and $24,287,000 at December 31, 2006 and 2005 and are included in other assets.
Amortization of such concessions is included in Consolidated Obligation interest expense and totaled $8,597,000,
$10,125,000, and $17,736,000 in 2006, 2005, and 2004. 

The FHLBank charges to expense as incurred the concessions applicable to Consolidated Obligation Discount Notes
because of the short maturities of these Notes. Analyses of the straight-line compared to the level-yield method have
been performed by the FHLBank and it has determined that the impact to the financial statements for each period
reported, taken individually and as a whole, is not material. Such concessions are included in Consolidated Obligation
interest expense and totaled $3,082,000, $4,334,000, and $3,196,000 in 2006, 2005, and 2004.

Discounts and Premiums on Consolidated Obligations. The FHLBank amortizes the discounts and premiums on
Consolidated Obligation Bonds to expense using the level-yield method over the terms to maturity of the Consolidated
Obligation Bonds and expenses the discounts on Consolidated Obligation Discount Notes using the straight-line method
over the term of the Notes due to their short-term nature. Analyses of the straight-line compared to the level-yield
method have been performed by the FHLBank and the FHLBank has determined that the impact to the financial
statements for each period reported, taken individually and as a whole, is not material. 

Finance Board and Office of Finance Expenses.  The FHLBank is assessed for its proportionate share of the costs of
operating the Finance Board, the FHLBank’s primary regulator, and the Office of Finance, which manages the sale of
Consolidated Obligations. The Finance Board allocates its operating and capital expenditures to the FHLBanks based on
each FHLBank’s percentage of total capital. The Office of Finance allocates its operating and capital expenditures based
on each FHLBank’s percentage of capital stock, percentage of Consolidated Obligations issued and percentage of
Consolidated Obligations outstanding.

Other Expenses. The FHLBank classifies third party volume-related mortgage loan costs and amounts awarded under 
its American Dream Homeownership Challenge and New Neighbors (hurricane relief) grant funds as other expenses.

Affordable Housing Program (AHP). The Act requires each FHLBank to establish and fund an AHP (see Note 9). The
FHLBank charges the required funding for AHP to earnings and establishes a liability. The AHP funds provide subsidies
to members to assist in the purchase, construction, or rehabilitation of housing for very low-, low-, and moderate-
income households. The FHLBank issues AHP Advances at interest rates below the customary interest rate for non-
subsidized Advances. The FHLBank also has the authority to make the AHP subsidy available to members as a grant.
When the FHLBank makes an AHP Advance, the present value of the variation in the cash flow caused by the
difference in the interest rate between the AHP Advance rate and the FHLBank’s related cost of funds for comparable
maturity funding is charged against the AHP liability and recorded as a discount on the AHP Advance. The discount on
AHP Advances is accreted to interest income on Advances using the level-yield method over the life of the Advance.

Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP) Assessments. Although the FHLBanks are exempt from ordinary Federal,
state, and local taxation except for local real estate tax, they are required to make quarterly payments to REFCORP to
pay toward interest on bonds issued by REFCORP. REFCORP is a corporation established by Congress in 1989 to
provide funding for the resolution and disposition of insolvent savings institutions. Officers, employees, and agents of
the Office of Finance are authorized to act for and on behalf of REFCORP to carry out the functions of REFCORP. See
Note 10 for more information.

Estimated Fair Values. Many of the FHLBank's financial instruments lack an available trading market characterized by
transactions between a willing buyer and a willing seller engaging in an exchange transaction. Therefore, the FHLBank
uses internal models employing significant estimates and present-value calculations when disclosing estimated fair
values. Note 18 details the estimated fair values of the FHLBank's financial instruments.

Cash Flows. In the Statements of Cash Flows, the FHLBank considers cash and due from banks as cash and cash
equivalents. Federal funds sold are not treated as cash equivalents for purposes of the Statements of Cash Flows, but
are instead treated as short-term investments and are reflected in the investing activities section of the Statements of
Cash Flows. 

Reclassifications. Certain amounts in the 2005 and 2004 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the
2006 presentation. 
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Note 2—Recently Issued Accounting Standards and Interpretations

SFAS No. 155, Accounting for Certain Hybrid Financial Instruments – an amendment of FASB Statements No. 133 and
140 (SFAS 155). The FASB issued SFAS 155 in February 2006. This statement resolves issues addressed in Statement
133 Implementation Issue No. D1, Application of Statement 133 to Beneficial Interests in Securitized Financial Assets
(DIG Issue D1). SFAS 155 amends SFAS 133 for certain derivatives embedded in other financial instruments (a hybrid
financial instrument) by permitting fair value remeasurement for any hybrid financial instrument that contains an
embedded derivative that otherwise required bifurcation, provided that the entire hybrid financial instrument is
accounted for on a fair value basis. SFAS 155 also establishes the requirement to evaluate interests in securitized
financial assets to identify interests that are freestanding derivatives or that are hybrid financial instruments that
contain an embedded derivative requiring bifurcation, which replaces the interim guidance in DIG Issue D1. SFAS 155
amends SFAS No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities a
replacement of FASB Statement 125 to allow a qualifying special-purpose entity to hold a derivative financial
instrument that pertains to beneficial interests other than another derivative financial instrument. SFAS 155 is effective
for all financial instruments acquired or issued after the beginning of the first fiscal year that begins after September
15, 2006 (January 1, 2007 for the FHLBank), with earlier adoption allowed. The FHLBank does not expect the adoption
of this statement to have a material impact on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

SFAS No. 156, Accounting for Servicing of Financial Assets, an Amendment of FASB No. 140 (SFAS 156). On March
17, 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 156, which amends SFAS Statement No. 140, Accounting for Transfers and Servicing
of Financial Assets and Extinguishment of Liabilities (SFAS 140), with respect to the accounting for separately
recognized servicing assets and servicing liabilities. SFAS 156 is effective for fiscal years beginning after September 15,
2006, with earlier adoption permitted. The FHLBank adopted SFAS 156 on January 1, 2007. The management of the
FHLBank does not expect SFAS 156 to have a material impact on its results of operations or financial condition at the
time of adoption. 

SFAS No. 157 Fair Value Measurements (SFAS 157). The FASB issued SFAS No. 157 in September 2006. SFAS 157
defines fair value, establishes a framework for measuring fair value in GAAP, and expands disclosures about fair value
measurements. SFAS 157 applies under other accounting pronouncements that require or permit fair value
measurements, the FASB having previously concluded in those accounting pronouncements that fair value is the
relevant measurement attribute. Accordingly, SFAS 157 does not require any new fair value measurements. SFAS 157 is
effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years beginning after November 15, 2007, and interim periods within
those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The FHLBank does not expect the adoption of this statement to have a
material impact on its financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.

SEC Staff Accounting Bulletin (SAB) No. 108, Considering the Effects of Prior Year Misstatements when Quantifying
Misstatements in Current Year Financial Statements (SAB 108). On September 13, 2006, the SEC issued SAB 108 to
provide guidance in the process of quantifying financial statement misstatements. SAB 108 requires registrants to
quantify an error under both the rollover and iron curtain approaches. A registrant’s financial statements would require
adjustment when either approach results in quantifying a misstatement that is material, after considering all relevant
quantitative and qualitative factors. The FHLBank adopted SAB 108 as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SAB 108
did not have a material impact on the FHLBank’s results of operations or financial condition.

SFAS No. 158, Employers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans – an amendment of
FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106 and 132(R) (SFAS 158). In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS 158 which
reconsiders the guidance in FASB Statements No. 87, Employers’ Accounting for Pensions, No. 106, Employers’
Accounting for Postretirement Benefits Other Than Pensions, and No. 132 (revised 2003), Employers’ Disclosures about
Pensions and Other Postretirement Benefits. SFAS 158 requires the recognition of a net liability or asset to report the
funded status of defined benefit pension and other postretirement benefit plans on the statement of financial position.
The FHLBank adopted SFAS 158 as of December 31, 2006. The adoption of SFAS 158 did not have a material impact
on the FHLBank’s results of operations or financial condition. See Note 15 for further discussion of the adoption of
SFAS 158.

SFAS No. 159 The Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities (SFAS 159). The FASB issued SFAS
159 in February 2007. SFAS 159 permits entities to choose, at specified election dates, to measure various financial
instruments and certain other items at fair value. SFAS 159 is effective for financial statements issued for fiscal years
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beginning after November 15, 2007. Early adoption is permitted as of the beginning of a fiscal year that begins on or
before November 15, 2007, provided that the provisions of SFAS 157 are applied at the same time. The management of
the FHLBank has not determined the effect that the implementation of SFAS 159 will have on its results of operations
or financial condition.

Note 3—Cash and Due from Banks

Compensating Balances. The FHLBank maintains collected cash balances with commercial banks in return for certain
services. These agreements contain no legal restrictions on the withdrawal of funds. The average compensating
balances for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005 were approximately $272,000 and $228,000.

In addition, the FHLBank maintained average required clearing balances with various Federal Reserve Banks and
branches of approximately $1,000,000 for the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005. These clearing balances
represent an average balance required to be maintained over each 14-day cycle and contain no legal restrictions on the
withdrawal of the funds. The FHLBank may use earnings credits on these balances to pay for services received from the
Federal Reserve Banks.

Pass-through Deposit Reserves. The FHLBank acts as a pass-through correspondent for member institutions required to
deposit reserves with the Federal Reserve Banks. The amount shown as “Cash and due from banks” includes pass-
through reserves deposited with Federal Reserve Banks of approximately $360,000 and $264,000 as of December 31,
2006 and 2005. The FHLBank includes the related liability for member reserve balances in “Deposits” on the Statements
of Condition.

Note 4—Securities Purchased Under Agreements to Resell

The FHLBank has entered into purchases of securities purchased under agreements to resell those securities. These
amounts represent short-term loans and are assets in the Statements of Condition. One of the Federal Reserve Banks
holds the securities purchased under agreements to resell in safekeeping in the name of the FHLBank. Should the
market value of the underlying securities decrease below the market value required as collateral, the counterparty must
place an equivalent amount of additional securities in safekeeping in the name of the FHLBank or the dollar value of
the resale agreement will be decreased accordingly. 

Note 5—Trading Securities

Major Security Types. Trading securities as of December 31 were as follows (in thousands):  

2006 2005

Mortgage-backed securities:  
U.S. agency obligations – guaranteed $     4,602 $     6,187

Prior to the effective date for SFAS 133, the FHLBank had purchased two mortgage-backed securities and effectively
removed the embedded caps and floors by executing interest rate swaps. The provisions of SFAS 133 allowed for a
transition redesignation of the mortgage-backed securities from held-to-maturity to trading. The FHLBank did
redesignate the hedged mortgage-backed securities from held-to-maturity to trading in order that the changes in fair
value of both the mortgage-backed securities and the interest rate swaps would result in a relatively offsetting impact
to other income that reflected the economics of these transactions. Both interest rate swaps matured during 2005. The
FHLBank did not execute replacement interest rate swaps to continue to economically hedge the two mortgage-backed
securities due to their relatively small size at that point in their life cycle.

The FHLBank has never purchased mortgage-backed securities that represent loans purchased directly from and/or
securitized by its members or other FHLBanks and therefore the above balances do not include any such purchases.

Net gain (loss) on trading securities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004 included a change in net
unrealized holding gain (loss) (in thousands) of $17, $(35), and $(33) for securities held on December 31, 2006, 2005,
and 2004.
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Note 6—Available-for-Sale Securities

Major Security Types. Available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):  

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains (Losses) Value

Commercial paper $ 1,188,981 $         - $      (531) $ 1,188,450

Available-for-sale securities as of December 31, 2005 were as follows (in thousands):  

Gross Gross Estimated
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Fair

Cost Gains (Losses) Value

Commercial paper $ 1,149,389 $   1,895 $       (13) $ 1,151,271

All securities outstanding with gross unrealized losses at December 31, 2006 and 2005 were short-term securities with
terms of less than 12 months. 

The FHLBank reviewed its available-for-sale securities and has determined that all unrealized losses reflected above are
temporary, based on the creditworthiness of the issuers and the underlying collateral, if applicable. The FHLBank
believes it is probable that it will be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the individual
securities. Based upon the creditworthiness of the issuers, and because the FHLBank has the ability and intent to hold
such securities through to recovery of the unrealized losses, it does not consider the investments to be other-than-
temporarily impaired at December 31, 2006.

Redemption Terms. The amortized cost and estimated fair value of available-for-sale securities by contractual maturity
at December 31 are shown below (in thousands). Expected maturities of some securities will differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment fees.

2006 2005
Estimated Estimated

Amortized Fair Amortized Fair
Year of Maturity Cost Value Cost Value

Due in one year or less $ 1,188,981 $ 1,188,450 $ 1,149,389 $ 1,151,271

Interest Rate Payment Terms.  The following table details additional interest rate payment terms for investment
securities classified as available-for-sale at December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Amortized cost of available-for-sale securities other than

mortgage-backed securities:
Fixed-rate $ 1,188,981 $ 1,149,389

Gains and Losses.  There were no gross gains (in thousands) and gross losses (in thousands) of $0, $0, and $3 were
realized on sales of available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004. 
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Note 7—Held-to-Maturity Securities

Major Security Types. Held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2006 were as follows (in thousands):  

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value

Government-sponsored enterprises $ 24,770 $ 6 $ - $ 24,776
State or local housing agency obligations 23,915 242 (4) 24,153

Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. agency obligations – guaranteed 27,599 - (510) 27,089
Government-sponsored enterprises 11,607,132 2,145 (268,355) 11,340,922
Other 415,932 - (10,434) 405,498

Total mortgage-backed securities 12,050,663 2,145 (279,299) 11,773,509

Total $ 12,099,348 $ 2,393 $ (279,303) $ 11,822,438

Held-to-maturity securities as of December 31, 2005 were as follows (in thousands):  

Gross Gross
Amortized Unrealized Unrealized Estimated

Cost Gains (Losses) Fair Value

Government-sponsored enterprises $ 19,249 $ 4 $ - $ 19,253
State or local housing agency obligations 31,070 743 - 31,813

Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. agency obligations – guaranteed 45,417 - (703) 44,714
Government-sponsored enterprises 11,713,941 5,551 (249,850) 11,469,642
Other 481,093 - (9,778) 471,315

Total mortgage-backed securities 12,240,451 5,551 (260,331) 11,985,671

Total $ 12,290,770 $ 6,298 $ (260,331) $ 12,036,737

The FHLBank has never purchased mortgage-backed securities that represent loans purchased directly from and/or
securitized by its members or other FHLBanks and therefore the above balances do not include any such purchases. 

The following table summarizes the held-to-maturity securities with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2006. The
unrealized losses are aggregated by major security type and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position (in thousands).

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value (Losses) Value (Losses) Value (Losses)

State or local housing agency 
obligations $    1,886 $        (4) $           - $        - $      1,886 $        (4)

Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. agency obligations – guaranteed - - 27,089 (510) 27,089 (510)
Government-sponsored enterprises 2,609,254 (12,575) 8,493,601 (255,780) 11,102,855 (268,355)
Other - - 405,498 (10,434) 405,498 (10,434)

Total temporarily impaired $ 2,611,140 $ (12,579) $ 8,926,188 $ (266,724) $ 11,537,328 $ (279,303)
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The FHLBank reviewed its held-to-maturity securities and has determined that all unrealized losses reflected above are
temporary, based on the creditworthiness of the issuers and the underlying collateral, if applicable. The FHLBank
believes it is probable that it will be able to collect all amounts due according to the contractual terms of the individual
securities. Additionally, the FHLBank has the ability and intent to hold such securities through to recovery of the
unrealized losses.

The following table summarizes the held-to-maturity securities with unrealized losses as of December 31, 2005. The
unrealized losses are aggregated by major security type and length of time that individual securities have been in a
continuous unrealized loss position (in thousands).

Less than 12 Months 12 Months or more Total
Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized Fair Unrealized

Value (Losses) Value (Losses) Value (Losses)

Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. agency obligations – guaranteed $     44,714 $    (703) $ - $         - $    44,714 $    (703)
Government-sponsored enterprises 6,584,919 (117,844) 3,680,584 (132,006) 10,265,503 (249,850)
Other 364,981 (6,600) 106,334 (3,178) 471,315 (9,778)

Total temporarily impaired $ 6,994,614 $ (125,147) $ 3,786,918 $ (135,184) $ 10,781,532 $ (260,331)

Redemption Terms. The amortized cost and estimated fair value of held-to-maturity securities by contractual maturity
at December 31 are shown below (in thousands). Expected maturities of some securities will differ from contractual
maturities because borrowers may have the right to call or prepay obligations with or without call or prepayment fees.

2006 2005
Amortized Estimated Amortized Estimated

Year of Maturity Cost Fair Value Cost Fair Value

Due in one year or less $    25,490 $    25,497 $            - $              -
Due after one year through five years - - 20,749 20,756
Due after ten years 23,195 23,432 29,570 30,310

Total other 48,685 48,929 50,319 51,066

Mortgage-backed securities:
U.S. agency obligations – guaranteed 27,599 27,089 45,417 44,714
Government-sponsored enterprises 11,607,132 11,340,922 11,713,941 11,469,642
Other 415,932 405,498 481,093 471,315

Total mortgage-backed securities 12,050,663 11,773,509 12,240,451 11,985,671

Total $ 12,099,348 $ 11,822,438 $ 12,290,770 $ 12,036,737

The amortized cost of the FHLBank's mortgage-backed securities classified as held-to-maturity includes net (discounts)
premiums (in thousands) of $(8,785) and $7,029 at December 31, 2006 and 2005.
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Interest Rate Payment Terms. The following table details interest rate payment terms for investment securities classified
as held-to-maturity at December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Amortized cost of held-to-maturity securities

other than mortgage-backed securities:
Fixed-rate $     44,955 $    46,419
Variable-rate 3,730 3,900

Total other 48,685 50,319
Amortized cost of held-to-maturity

mortgage-backed securities:
Pass-through securities:

Fixed-rate 5,999,899 5,786,915
Collateralized mortgage obligations:

Fixed-rate 6,048,732 6,449,032
Variable-rate 2,032 4,504

Total mortgage-backed securities 12,050,663 12,240,451

Total $ 12,099,348 $ 12,290,770

Note 8—Advances

Redemption Terms. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had Advances outstanding, including AHP Advances
(see Note 9), at interest rates ranging from 0.00 percent to 9.75 percent, as summarized below (dollars in thousands).
Advances with interest rates of 0.00 percent are AHP subsidized Advances.

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest

Year of Original Maturity Amount Rate % Amount Rate %

Overdrawn demand deposit accounts $        125 5.42 $        1,785 4.54

2006 10,862,185 4.10
2007 14,604,942 5.17 7,784,494 4.31
2008 3,940,640 5.17 4,667,045 4.47
2009 6,779,335 5.32 5,736,701 4.49
2010 5,452,810 5.49 5,002,229 4.82
2011 4,712,975 5.27 1,924,045 4.59
Thereafter 6,451,631 4.89 4,178,593 4.35

Total par value 41,942,458 5.20 40,157,077 4.38

Commitment fees (1,795) (2,438)
Discount on AHP Advances (33,396) (30,301)
Discount on Advances (919) (1,815)
SFAS 133 hedging adjustments 50,190 139,100

Total $ 41,956,538 $ 40,261,623

The FHLBank offers Advances to members that may be prepaid on pertinent dates (call dates) without incurring
prepayment or termination fees (callable Advances). Other Advances may only be prepaid by paying a fee to the
FHLBank (prepayment fee) that makes the FHLBank financially indifferent to the prepayment of the Advance. At
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had callable Advances (in thousands) of $21,221,507 and $17,967,510.
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The following table summarizes Advances at December 31 by year of original maturity or next call date for callable
Advances (in thousands):

Year of Original Maturity or Next Call 2006 2005
Overdrawn demand deposit accounts $         125 $     1,785

2006 27,849,879
2007 32,639,126 1,996,603
2008 1,461,303 1,577,159
2009 1,498,856 1,454,222
2010 1,582,414 1,873,333
2011 1,296,475 1,896,545
Thereafter 3,464,159 3,507,551

Total par value $ 41,942,458 $ 40,157,077

Through December 2005, the FHLBank offered Convertible Advances. With a Convertible Advance, the FHLBank
purchases an option from the member that allows the FHLBank to convert the interest rate from fixed to floating by
terminating the fixed Advance, which the FHLBank normally would exercise when interest rates increase, and offering
a floating rate Advance. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had Convertible Advances outstanding totaling
(in thousands) $4,485,200 and $6,793,700. In January 2006, the FHLBank began offering Putable Advances. With a
Putable Advance, the FHLBank purchases a put option from the member that allows the FHLBank to terminate the
Advance, which the FHLBank normally would exercise when interest rates increase. At December 31, 2006, the
FHLBank had Putable Advances outstanding totaling (in thousands) $444,000.

The following table summarizes Advances at December 31 by year of original maturity or next convert date for
Convertible Advances and next put date for Putable Advances (in thousands):

Year of Original Maturity or Next Convert/Put Date 2006 2005
Overdrawn demand deposit accounts $        125 $        1,785

2006 17,074,385
2007 19,067,142 7,915,994
2008 3,831,140 4,053,545
2009 6,130,635 4,844,001
2010 4,223,310 3,483,229
2011 3,921,475 172,545
Thereafter 4,768,631 2,611,593

Total par value $ 41,942,458 $ 40,157,077

The FHLBank also offers Advances with a prepayment option based on the 12-month average prepayment speed on a
Freddie Mac or Fannie Mae mortgage-backed security with a similar coupon rate and term (Mortgage Matched
Advances). During each 12-month period beginning with the date of disbursement, the borrower has the option of
making one partial payment of principal without incurring a prepayment fee. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the
FHLBank had (in thousands) $396,743 and $412,958 of Advances with such coupons which are included in the above
tables by original maturity date.

Security Terms. The FHLBank lends to financial institutions involved in housing finance within its district according to
Federal statutes, including the Act. The Act requires the FHLBank to obtain sufficient collateral on Advances to protect
against losses and to accept only certain U.S. government or government agency securities, residential mortgage loans,
cash or deposits, member capital stock in the FHLBank, and other eligible real estate-related assets as collateral on the
Advances. Community Financial Institutions (CFIs) are eligible under expanded statutory collateral rules to use secured
small business, small farm, and small agricultural loans, and securities representing a whole interest in those secured
loans. As additional security, the FHLBank has a statutory lien on each borrower’s capital in the FHLBank. At both
December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had rights to collateral with an estimated value exceeding outstanding
Advances by more than $150 billion. On the basis of the financial condition of the member (or borrower), the type 

43

Notes to Financial Statements



of security agreement, and other factors, the FHLBank may either:

1.    allow a member (or borrower) to retain possession of the collateral assigned to the FHLBank, if the member
(or borrower) executes a written security agreement and agrees to hold the collateral for the benefit of the
FHLBank; or

2. require the member (or borrower) to deliver physical possession of the collateral to the FHLBank or a third
party custodian approved by the FHLBank. 

Beyond these provisions, Section 10(e) of the Act affords any security interest granted by a member (or borrower) to the
FHLBank priority over the claims or rights of any other party. with the exception of claims that would be entitled to
priority under otherwise applicable law and that are held by bona fide purchasers for value or by secured parties with
perfected security interests.

Credit Risk. While the FHLBank has never experienced a credit loss on an Advance to a member, the expanded
collateral available to CFIs provides the potential for additional credit risk for the FHLBank. The management of the
FHLBank has adopted policies and procedures that it believes enable it to appropriately manage this credit risk.
Accordingly, the FHLBank has not provided any allowances for losses on these Advances.

The FHLBank's potential credit risk from Advances is concentrated in commercial banks and savings institutions. The
income from Advances to member institutions holding 5 percent or more of total Advances at December 31, 2006, 2005
and 2004 amounted to $1,371.3 million, $896.9 million and $666.7 million, respectively, during those  years. The
FHLBank held sufficient collateral to cover the Advances to these institutions, and the FHLBank does not expect to
incur any credit losses on these Advances. 

The following table shows Advance balances at December 31 to members holding 5 percent or more of total Advances
and includes any known affiliates that are members of the FHLBank (dollars in millions): 

2006 2005
Principal % of Total Principal % of Total

Charter One Bank, N.A. $ 10,772 26% $ 9,876 25%
U.S. Bank, N.A. 6,757 16 3,621 9
Fifth Third Bank 4,048 10 3,045 7
Ohio Savings Bank 3,971 9 3,878 10
National City Bank(1) 2,008 5

Total $ 25,548 61% $ 22,428 56%

(1)   National City Bank’s Advance balance (in millions) was $1,201, or 3% of total Advances, at December 31, 2006.

Interest Rate Payment Terms. The following table details Advances by interest rate payment type at December 31 
(in thousands):

2006 2005
Par amount of Advances:

Fixed-rate $ 18,490,826 $ 20,159,567
Variable-rate 23,451,632 19,997,510

Total $ 41,942,458 $ 40,157,077

Prepayment Fees. The FHLBank records prepayment fees received from members on prepaid Advances net of any
associated SFAS 133 hedging fair-value adjustments on those Advances. The net amount of prepayment fees is
reflected as interest income in the Statements of Income. Gross Advance prepayment fees received from members (in
thousands) were $10,357, $337 and $609,894 for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.
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Note 9—Affordable Housing Program (AHP) 

Section 10(j) of the Act requires each FHLBank to establish an AHP. Each FHLBank provides subsidies in the form of
direct grants and below-market interest rate Advances to members who use the funds to assist in the purchase,
construction, or rehabilitation of housing for very low-, low-, and moderate-income households. Annually, the
FHLBanks must set aside for the AHP the greater of $100 million or 10 percent of regulatory income. Regulatory
income is defined as GAAP income before interest expense related to mandatorily redeemable capital stock and the
AHP assessment, but after the assessment for REFCORP. The exclusion of interest expense related to mandatorily
redeemable capital stock is a regulatory calculation determined by the Finance Board. The AHP and REFCORP
assessments are calculated simultaneously because of their interdependence. The FHLBank accrues AHP expense
monthly based on its income. The FHLBank reduces the AHP liability as members use subsidies. Calculation of the
REFCORP assessment is discussed in Note 10.

If the FHLBank experienced a regulatory loss during a quarter, but still had regulatory income for the year, the
FHLBank’s obligation to the AHP would be calculated based on the FHLBank’s year-to-date regulatory income. If the
FHLBank had regulatory income in subsequent quarters, it would be required to contribute additional amounts to meet
its calculated annual obligation. If the FHLBank experienced a regulatory loss for a full year, the FHLBank would have
no obligation to the AHP for the year except in the following circumstance. If the result of the aggregate 10 percent
calculation described above is less than $100 million for all 12 FHLBanks, then the Act requires that each FHLBank
contribute such prorated sums as may be required to assure that the aggregate contributions of the FHLBanks equals
$100 million. The pro ration would be made on the basis of the income of the FHLBanks for the previous year. 

There was no shortfall in either 2006 or 2005. If an FHLBank finds that its required AHP obligations are contributing
to the financial instability of that FHLBank, it may apply to the Finance Board for a temporary suspension of its
contributions. The FHLBank has never made such an application. The FHLBank had outstanding principal in AHP-
related Advances (in thousands) of $169,165 and $159,954 at December 31, 2006 and 2005. An analysis of the AHP
liability for the years ended December 31 follows (in thousands):

2006 2005
Balance at beginning of year $ 91,035 $ 88,919
Expense 29,584 25,890
Subsidy uses, net (24,379) (23,774)

Balance at end of year $ 96,240 $ 91,035

Note 10—Resolution Funding Corporation (REFCORP)

Each FHLBank is required to pay to REFCORP 20 percent of income calculated in accordance with GAAP after the
assessment for AHP, but before the assessment for the REFCORP. The AHP and REFCORP assessments are calculated
simultaneously because of their interdependence. The FHLBank accrues its REFCORP assessment on a monthly basis.
Calculation of the AHP assessment is discussed in Note 9. Each FHLBank provides its net income before AHP and
REFCORP to the Resolution Funding Corporation, which, as calculation agent, then performs the calculations for each
quarter end.

The FHLBanks will continue to be obligated for these amounts until the aggregate amounts actually paid by all 12
FHLBanks are equivalent to a $300 million annual annuity (or a scheduled payment of $75 million per quarter) whose
final maturity date is April 15, 2030, at which point the required payment of each FHLBank to REFCORP will be fully
satisfied. The Finance Board, in consultation with the Secretary of the Treasury, selects the appropriate discounting
factors to be used in this annuity calculation. The FHLBanks use the actual payments made to determine the amount of
the future obligation that has been defeased. The cumulative amount to be paid to REFCORP by the FHLBank is not
determinable at this time because it depends on the future earnings of all FHLBanks and interest rates. If the FHLBank
experienced a net loss during a quarter, but still had net income for the year, the FHLBank’s obligation to REFCORP
would be calculated based on the FHLBank’s year-to-date net income. The FHLBank would be entitled to a refund of
amounts paid for the full year that were in excess of its calculated annual obligation. If the FHLBank had net income
in subsequent quarters, it would be required to contribute additional amounts to meet its calculated annual obligation.
If the FHLBank experienced a net loss for a full year, the FHLBank would have no obligation to REFCORP for the year.
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The Finance Board is required to extend the term of the FHLBanks’ obligation to REFCORP for each calendar quarter in
which there is a deficit quarterly payment. A deficit quarterly payment is the amount by which the actual quarterly
payment falls short of $75 million. 

The FHLBanks’ aggregate payments through 2006 exceeded the scheduled payments, effectively accelerating payment
of the REFCORP obligation and shortening its remaining term to the third quarter of 2015. The FHLBanks' aggregate
payments through 2006 have satisfied $3.1 million of the $75 million scheduled payment for the third quarter of 2015
and all scheduled payments thereafter. This date assumes the FHLBanks will pay exactly $300 million annually after
December 31, 2006 until the annuity is satisfied.

The benchmark payments or portions of them could be reinstated if the actual REFCORP payments of the FHLBanks fall
short of $75 million in a quarter. The maturity date of the REFCORP obligation may be extended beyond April 15,
2030 if such extension is necessary to ensure that the value of the aggregate amounts paid by the FHLBanks exactly
equals a $300 million annual annuity. Any payment beyond April 15, 2030 will be paid directly to the Department of
Treasury.   

Note 11—Mortgage Loans Held for Portfolio

Under the Mortgage Purchase Program, the FHLBank invests in mortgage loans that it purchases from participating
members. Total mortgage loans held for portfolio represent home mortgage loans under the Mortgage Purchase
Program that the FHLBank’s members originate, service in some cases, credit enhance, and then sell to the FHLBank.
Those members participating in the servicing-released program do not service the loans owned by the FHLBank. The
servicing on these loans was sold concurrently to a designated mortgage service provider. The following table presents
information as of December 31 on mortgage loans held for portfolio (in thousands):

2006 2005
Real Estate:

Fixed rate medium-term single-family mortgages (1) $ 1,414,698 $ 1,615,684
Fixed rate long-term single-family mortgages 6,963,964 6,708,630

Subtotal fixed rate single-family mortgages 8,378,662 8,324,314

Premiums 98,804 114,014
Discounts (6,674) (6,853)
SFAS 133 basis adjustments (10,076) (13,336)

Total $ 8,460,716 $ 8,418,139

(1)  Medium-term is defined as a term of 15 years or less.

The following table details the par value of mortgage loans held for portfolio outstanding at December 31 (in
thousands): 

2006 2005

Government-insured loans $ 1,563,548 $ 1,898,524
Conventional loans 6,815,114 6,425,790

Total par value $ 8,378,662 $ 8,324,314

The conventional mortgage loans are supported by primary and supplemental mortgage insurance and the LRA (see
Note 1) in addition to the associated property as collateral. The FHLBank has experienced no credit losses on mortgage
loans to date and no event has occurred that would cause the FHLBank to believe it will have to absorb any credit
losses on these mortgage loans. Accordingly, the FHLBank has not provided any allowances for losses on these
mortgage loans.
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The following table presents changes in the Lender Risk Account for the years ended December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005

Lender Risk Account at beginning of year $ 42,472 $ 37,243
Additions 3,779 5,324
Claims (203) (95)
Scheduled distributions (87) -

Lender Risk Account at end of year $ 45,961 $ 42,472

The FHLBank had no nonaccrual loans at December 31, 2006 and 2005.

Mortgage loans, other than those included in large groups of smaller-balance homogeneous loans, are considered
impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the FHLBank will be unable to collect all
principal and interest amounts due according to the contractual terms of the mortgage loan agreement. At December
31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had no recorded investments in impaired mortgage loans.  

The following table shows unpaid principal balances at December 31 to members supplying 5 percent or more of total
unpaid principal and includes any known affiliates that are members of the FHLBank (dollars in millions): 

2006 2005
Principal % of Total Principal % of Total

National City Bank $ 4,767 57% $ 4,530 54%
Union Savings Bank 2,097 25 2,207 27
Guardian Savings Bank FSB 517 6 522 6

Total $ 7,381 88% $ 7,259 87%

Note 12—Deposits

The FHLBank offers demand and overnight interest bearing deposits for members and qualifying non-members. In
addition, the FHLBank offers short-term interest bearing deposit programs to members. A member that services
mortgage loans may deposit in the FHLBank funds collected in connection with the mortgage loans, pending
disbursement of such funds to the owners of the mortgage loans; the FHLBank classifies these items as “Other” interest
bearing deposits below. 

Certain financial institutions have agreed to maintain compensating balances in consideration for correspondent and
other non-credit services. These balances are classified as interest bearing deposits on the accompanying financial
statements. The compensating balances held by the FHLBank averaged (in thousands) $21,938 and $39,361 during 2006
and 2005.

Deposits classified as demand, overnight, and other pay interest based on a daily interest rate. Term deposits pay
interest based on a fixed rate determined at the issuance of the deposit. The average interest rates paid on average
interest bearing deposits during 2006, 2005, and 2004 were 4.72 percent, 2.92 percent, and 1.05 percent.

Non-interest bearing deposits represent funds where the FHLBank acts as a pass-through correspondent for member
institutions required to deposit reserves with the Federal Reserve Banks.
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The following table details interest bearing and non-interest bearing deposits as of December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005

Interest bearing:
Demand and overnight $ 826,873 $ 836,304
Term 88,425 60,375
Other 11,576 13,774

Total interest bearing deposits 926,874 910,453

Non-interest bearing:
Other 360 264

Total non-interest bearing deposits 360 264

Total deposits $ 927,234 $ 910,717

Note 13—Consolidated Obligations

Consolidated Obligations consist of Consolidated Bonds and Discount Notes and, as provided by the Act or Finance
Board Regulation, are backed only by the financial resources of the FHLBanks. The FHLBanks issue Consolidated
Obligations through the Office of Finance as their agent. In connection with each debt issuance, each FHLBank specifies
the amount of debt it wants issued on its behalf. The Office of Finance tracks the amount of debt issued on behalf of
each FHLBank. In addition, the FHLBank separately tracks and records as a liability its specific portion of Consolidated
Obligations for which it is the primary obligor. The Finance Board and the U.S. Secretary of the Treasury have
oversight over the issuance of FHLBank debt through the Office of Finance. Consolidated Bonds are issued primarily to
raise intermediate and long-term funds for the FHLBanks and are not subject to any statutory or regulatory limits on
maturity. Consolidated Discount Notes are issued primarily to raise short-term funds. These notes sell at less than their
face amount and are redeemed at par value when they mature. 

Although the FHLBank is primarily liable for its portion of Consolidated Obligations (i.e., those issued on its behalf), the
FHLBank is also jointly and severally liable with the other eleven FHLBanks for the payment of principal and interest
on all Consolidated Obligations of each of the FHLBanks. The Finance Board, at its discretion, may require any
FHLBank to make principal or interest payments due on any Consolidated Obligation whether or not the Consolidated
Obligation represents a primary liability of such FHLBank. Although it has never occurred, to the extent that an
FHLBank makes any payment on a Consolidated Obligation on behalf of another FHLBank that is primarily liable for
such Consolidated Obligation, Finance Board Regulations provide that the paying FHLBank is entitled to reimbursement
from the non-complying FHLBank for any payments made on its behalf and other associated costs (including interest
to be determined by the Finance Board). If, however, the Finance Board determines that the non-complying FHLBank is
unable to satisfy its repayment obligations, the Finance Board may allocate the outstanding liabilities of the non-
complying FHLBank among the remaining FHLBanks on a pro rata basis in proportion to each FHLBank’s participation
in all Consolidated Obligations outstanding or in any other manner it may determine to ensure that the FHLBanks
operate in a safe and sound manner.

The par amounts of the 12 FHLBanks' outstanding Consolidated Obligations were approximately $952.0 billion and
$937.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Regulations require the FHLBank to maintain unpledged qualifying
assets equal to its participation in the Consolidated Obligations outstanding. Qualifying assets are defined as cash;
secured Advances; assets with an assessment or rating at least equivalent to the current assessment or rating of the
Consolidated Obligations; obligations of or fully guaranteed by the United States; obligations, participations, or other
instruments of or issued by Fannie Mae or Ginnie Mae; mortgages, obligations, or other securities which are or have
ever been sold by Freddie Mac under the Act; and such securities as fiduciary and trust funds may invest in under the
laws of the state in which the FHLBank is located. 

To provide the holders of Consolidated Obligations issued before January 29, 1993 (prior bondholders) the protection
equivalent to that provided under a previous leverage limit of 12 times the FHLBanks’ capital stock, prior bondholders
have a claim on a certain amount of the qualifying assets [Special Asset Account (SAA)] if capital stock is less than
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8.33 percent of Consolidated Obligations. Mandatorily redeemable capital stock is considered capital stock for
determining the FHLBanks’ compliance with this requirement. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBanks’
regulatory capital stock was 4.5 percent and 4.6 percent of the par value of Consolidated Obligations outstanding, and
the required minimum pledged asset balance was approximately $26,000 and $110,000. 

The Regulations also require each FHLBank to transfer qualifying assets in the amount of its allocated share of the
FHLBanks’ SAA to a trust for the benefit of the prior bondholders if its capital-to-assets ratio falls below two percent.
As of December 31, 2006 and 2005 no FHLBank had a capital-to-assets ratio less than two percent; therefore no assets
were being held in a trust. In addition, no trust has ever been established as a result of this Regulation, as the ratio has
never fallen below two percent. 

General Terms.  Consolidated Obligations are issued with either fixed-rate coupon payment terms or variable-rate
coupon payment terms that use a variety of indices for interest rate resets, including the London Interbank Offered Rate
(LIBOR). To meet the expected specific needs of certain investors in Consolidated Obligations, both fixed-rate bonds and
variable-rate bonds may contain features, which may result in complex coupon payment terms and call options. When
such Consolidated Obligations are issued, the FHLBank enters into derivatives containing offsetting features that
effectively convert the terms of the bond to those of a simple variable-rate bond or a fixed-rate bond.

These Consolidated Obligations, beyond having fixed-rate or simple variable-rate interest payment terms, may also
have the following broad terms regarding principal repayment terms:  

Optional Principal Redemption Bonds (callable bonds) that the FHLBank may redeem in whole or in part at its
discretion on predetermined call dates according to the terms of the bond offerings. 

Interest Rate Payment Terms. The following table details Consolidated Bonds by interest rate payment type at
December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Par value of Consolidated Bonds:

Fixed-rate $ 51,445,308 $ 51,096,155
Variable-rate 1,973,973 2,770,188

Total par value $ 53,419,281 $ 53,866,343

Redemption Terms. The following is a summary of the FHLBank’s participation in Consolidated Bonds outstanding 
at December 31 by year of original maturity (dollars in thousands):

2006 2005
Weighted Weighted
Average Average
Interest Interest

Year of Original Maturity Amount Rate % Amount Rate %

2006 $ 17,845,188 3.22
2007 $ 20,555,348 4.21 13,823,625 3.65
2008 13,045,230 4.56 6,898,000 4.03
2009 5,057,000 4.49 3,615,000 4.19
2010 3,731,000 4.59 3,079,000 4.43
2011 2,714,750 4.92 1,620,000 4.68
Thereafter 8,315,953 4.93 6,985,530 4.84

Total par value 53,419,281 4.49 53,866,343 3.82

Bond premiums 26,847 37,662
Bond discounts (50,505) (57,390)
Deferred net loss on terminated hedges 62 119
SFAS 133 hedging adjustments (156,441) (326,455)

Total $ 53,239,244 $ 53,520,279
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The FHLBank uses fixed-rate callable debt to finance callable Advances (see Note 8), mortgage loans held for portfolio,
and mortgage-backed securities. Simultaneous with such a debt issue, the FHLBank may also enter into an interest-rate
swap (in which the FHLBank pays variable, and receives fixed, interest) with a call feature that mirrors the option
embedded in the debt (a sold callable swap). The combined sold callable swap and callable debt allows the FHLBank to
provide members attractively priced variable-rate Advances. The FHLBank’s Consolidated Bonds outstanding at
December 31 included (in thousands):

2006 2005
Par amount of Consolidated Bonds:

Non-callable $ 31,267,308 $ 34,373,155
Callable 22,151,973 19,493,188

Total par value $ 53,419,281 $ 53,866,343

The following table summarizes Consolidated Bonds outstanding at December 31 by year of original maturity or next
call date (in thousands):

Year of Original Maturity or Next Call Date 2006 2005

2006 $ 32,028,188
2007 $ 35,812,848 9,820,625
2008 7,595,730 4,233,000
2009 2,677,000 1,995,000
2010 2,282,000 2,174,000
2011 1,186,750 645,000
Thereafter 3,864,953 2,970,530

Total par value $ 53,419,281 $ 53,866,343

Consolidated Discount Notes. Consolidated Discount Notes are issued to raise short-term funds. Discount Notes are
Consolidated Obligations with original maturities up to 365 days. These notes are issued at less than their face amount
and redeemed at par value when they mature. The FHLBank's participation in Consolidated Discount Notes was as
follows (dollars in thousands):

Weighted Average
Book Value Par Value Interest Rate (1)

December 31, 2006 $ 21,946,379 $ 22,021,300 5.22%

December 31, 2005 $ 17,577,416 $ 17,634,170 4.12%

(1)   The Consolidated Discount Notes weighted average interest rate represents the implied rate.

Note 14—Capital

The FHLBank is subject to three capital requirements under its Capital Plan and the Finance Board rules and
regulations:  (1) risk-based capital, (2) total capital and (3) leverage capital. First, under the risk-based capital
requirement, the FHLBank must maintain at all times permanent capital defined as Class B stock and retained earnings
in an amount at least equal to the sum of its credit risk, market risk, and operations risk capital requirements, 
all of which are calculated in accordance with the rules and regulations of the Finance Board. The Finance Board may
require the FHLBank to maintain a greater amount of permanent capital than is required by the risk-based capital
requirements. Second, the FHLBank is required to maintain at all times a total capital-to-assets ratio of at least four
percent. Total capital is the sum of permanent capital, Class A stock, any general loss allowance, if consistent with
GAAP and not established for specific assets, and other amounts from sources determined by the Finance Board as
available to absorb losses. Third, the FHLBank is required to maintain at all times a leverage capital-to-assets ratio of
at least five percent. Leverage capital is defined as the sum of (i) permanent capital weighted 1.5 times and (ii) all other
capital without a weighting factor. Mandatorily redeemable capital stock is considered capital for determining the
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FHLBank’s compliance with its regulatory requirements. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank was in
compliance with the aforementioned capital rules and requirements.

The following table demonstrates the FHLBank’s compliance with these capital requirements at December 31 (dollars in
thousands):

2006 2005
Required Actual Required Actual

Regulatory capital requirements:
Risk based capital $ 576,678 $ 4,050,283 $ 578,802 $ 4,129,647
Total capital-to-assets ratio 4.00% 4.98% 4.00% 5.35%
Total regulatory capital $ 3,255,467 $ 4,050,283 $ 3,087,194 $ 4,129,647
Leverage capital-to-assets ratio 5.00% 7.46% 5.00% 8.03%
Leverage capital $ 4,069,334 $ 6,075,425 $ 3,858,993 $ 6,194,471

The FHLBank currently offers only Class B stock, which is issued and redeemed at a par value of $100 per share. Class
B stock is issued to meet membership and activity stock purchase requirements, to pay dividends, and to pay interest
on mandatorily redeemable capital stock. Membership stock is required to become a member of and maintain
membership in the FHLBank. The membership stock requirement is based upon a percentage of the member’s total
assets, currently determined within a range from 0.03 percent to 0.15 percent, that varies inversely to total assets. In
addition to membership stock, a member may be required to hold activity stock to capitalize its Mission Asset Activity
with the FHLBank. 

Mission Asset Activity includes Advances, certain funds and rate Advance commitments, and Mortgage Purchase
Program activity that occurred after implementation of the Capital Plan on December 30, 2002. Members must
maintain a Class B stock balance at least equal to the minimum activity allocation percentage, which currently is zero
percent of Mission Asset Activity for the Mortgage Purchase Program and two percent of Mission Asset Activity for all
other Mission Asset Activity. If a member owns more than the maximum activity allocation percentage, which currently
is four percent of Mission Asset Activity, the additional stock is that member’s excess stock. The FHLBank’s unrestricted
excess stock is defined as total Class B stock minus membership stock, activity stock calculated at the maximum
allocation percentage, shares reserved for exclusive use after a dividend, and shares subject to redemption and
withdrawal notices. The FHLBank’s excess stock may normally be used by members to support a portion of their
activity requirement as long as those members maintain their minimum activity stock allocation percentage.

Class B stock can be redeemed by giving five years’ written notice. The FHLBank may also repurchase the excess stock
of any stockholder with no less than five calendar days’ prior written notice. When the FHLBank repurchases capital
stock, it must first repurchase shares for which a redemption or withdrawal notice’s five-year redemption period or
withdrawal period has expired. Since December 30, 2002, when the new capital structure was implemented, the
FHLBank has repurchased, at its discretion, all member shares subject to outstanding redemption or withdrawal notices
prior to the expiration of the five-year redemption notice period.

The Gramm-Leach-Bliley Act of 1999 (GLB Act) made membership in the FHLBanks voluntary for all members. Any
member that has withdrawn from membership may not be readmitted to membership in any FHLBank until five years
from the divestiture date for all capital stock that was held as a condition of membership. That requirement is set out
in the FHLBank's capital plan as described in the section below, unless the institution has cancelled its notice of
withdrawal prior to that date.

The FHLBank’s retained earnings are owned proportionately by the current holders of Class B stock. The holders’
interest in the retained earnings is realized at the time the FHLBank periodically declares dividends or at such time as
the FHLBank is liquidated. The FHLBank’s Board of Directors may declare and pay dividends out of previously retained
earnings in either cash or capital stock.  

Mandatorily Redeemable Capital Stock. The FHLBank applies SFAS 150 based on the characteristics of the FHLBank’s
stock, SFAS 150’s definition of a nonpublic entity, and the definition of an SEC registrant in FASB Staff Position No.
SFAS 150-3 (FSP 150-3). The FHLBank is a cooperative whose members and former members own all of the FHLBank’s
capital stock. Member shares cannot be purchased or sold except between the FHLBank and its members at its $100 per
share par value. 
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In compliance with SFAS 150, the FHLBank reclassifies stock subject to redemption from equity to liability upon
expiration of the “grace period” after a member submits a written redemption request or withdrawal notice, or when
the member attains non-member status by merger or acquisition, charter termination, or involuntary termination of
membership, since the shares of capital stock then meet the definition of a mandatorily redeemable financial
instrument. A member may cancel or revoke its written redemption request or its withdrawal from membership notice
prior to the end of the five-year redemption period. Under the FHLBank’s Capital Plan, there is a five calendar day
“grace period” for revocation of a redemption request and a 30 calendar day “grace period” for revocation of a
withdrawal notice during which the member may cancel the redemption request or withdrawal notice without a penalty
or fee. The cancellation fee after the “grace period” is currently two percent of the requested amount in the first year
and increases one percent a year until it reaches a maximum of six percent in the fifth year. The cancellation fee can
be waived by the FHLBank’s Board of Directors for a bona fide business purpose.

Stock subject to a redemption or withdrawal notice that is within the “grace period” continues to be considered equity
because there is no penalty or fee to retract these notices. Expiration of the “grace period” triggers the reclassification
from equity to a liability (mandatorily redeemable capital stock) at fair value because after the “grace period” the
penalty to retract these notices is considered substantive. Dividends related to capital stock classified as a liability are
accrued at the expected dividend rate and reported as interest expense in the Statements of Income. The repayment of
these mandatorily redeemable financial instruments is reflected as a cash outflow in the financing activities section of
the Statements of Cash Flows. 

On January 1, 2004, the FHLBank reclassified (in thousands) $29,825 of its outstanding capital stock to “mandatorily
redeemable capital stock” in the liability section of the Statements of Condition. Upon adoption, the FHLBank also
recorded estimated dividends earned as a part of the carrying value of the mandatorily redeemable capital stock. Since
the FHLBank pays dividends on the last day of the quarter, the difference between the prior carrying amount and the
mandatorily redeemable capital stock was zero; therefore a cumulative effect of a change in accounting principle was
not required to be reported in the Statements of Income. For the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004
dividends on mandatorily redeemable capital stock in the amount (in thousands) of $13,162, $13,335, and $1,350 were
recorded as interest expense.

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had (in thousands) $137,109 and $418,381 in capital stock classified as
mandatorily redeemable capital stock in the liability section of the Statements of Condition in accordance with SFAS
150. The balance was comprised of 7 members and 13 former members at December 31, 2006 and 17 former members
at December 31, 2005.  

The following table shows the amount of mandatorily redeemable capital stock by year of redemption at December 31
(in thousands). Year of redemption in the table is the end of the five-year redemption period. Consistent with the
Capital Plan currently in effect, the FHLBank is not required to redeem membership stock until five years after either 
(i) the membership is terminated or (ii) the FHLBank receives notice of withdrawal. The FHLBank is not required to
redeem activity-based stock until the later of the expiration of the notice of redemption or until the activity to which
the capital stock relates no longer remains outstanding. If activity-based stock becomes excess stock as a result of an
activity no longer remaining outstanding, the FHLBank may repurchase such shares, in its sole discretion, subject to 
the Statutory and Regulatory Restrictions on Capital Stock Redemption discussed below. 

Contractual Year of Redemption 2006 2005
2006 $       -
2007 $ 1,252 21,011
2008 595 1,819
2009 573 11,114
2010 36,729 384,437
2011 97,960 -

Total par value $ 137,109 $ 418,381
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The FHLBank’s activity for mandatorily redeemable capital stock was as follows (in thousands). 

2006 2005
Balance, beginning of year $ 418,381 $ 34,344
Capital stock subject to mandatory redemption reclassified from equity:

Withdrawals 4,600 369,182
Other redemptions 88,164 128,072
Redemption of mandatorily redeemable capital stock:

Withdrawals (382,785) (1,433)
Other redemptions (894) (128,072)

Stock dividend classified as mandatorily redeemable 9,643 16,288

Balance, end of year $ 137,109 $ 418,381

As of December 31, 2006, there were no members or former members that had requested redemptions of capital stock
whose stock had not been reclassified as mandatorily redeemable capital stock because the “grace periods” had not yet
expired on these requests.

Statutory and Regulatory Restrictions on Capital Stock Redemption.  In accordance with the GLB Act, each class of
FHLBank stock is putable by the member. However, there are significant statutory and regulatory restrictions on the
FHLBank’s obligation or right to redeem outstanding stock. 

• The FHLBank may not redeem any capital stock if, following the redemption, the FHLBank would fail to satisfy
any of its minimum capital requirements. By law, no FHLBank stock may be redeemed if the FHLBank becomes
undercapitalized.

• The FHLBank may not redeem any capital stock without approval of the Finance Board if either its Board of
Directors or the Finance Board determines that the FHLBank has incurred or is likely to incur losses resulting or
expected to result in a charge against capital while such charges are continuing or expected to continue.

Additionally, the FHLBank may not redeem or repurchase shares of stock from any member if (1) the principal or
interest on any Consolidated Obligation has not been paid in full when due; (2) the FHLBank has failed to certify in
writing to the Finance Board that it will remain in compliance with its liquidity requirements and will remain capable
of making full and timely payment of all of its current obligations; (3) the FHLBank has notified the Finance Board
that it cannot provide the foregoing certification, projects it will fail to comply with statutory or regulatory liquidity
requirements, or will be unable to timely and fully meet all of its current obligations; or (4) the FHLBank has failed to
comply with statutory or regulatory liquidity requirements or to timely and fully meet all of its current obligations, or
has entered into or negotiated to enter into an agreement with one or more other FHLBanks to obtain financial
assistance to meet its current obligations.

If the FHLBank is liquidated, after payment in full to the FHLBank’s creditors, the FHLBank’s stockholders will be
entitled to receive the par value of their capital stock as well as any retained earnings in an amount proportional to the
stockholder’s share of the total shares of capital stock. In the event of a merger or consolidation of the FHLBank, the
Board of Directors shall determine the rights and preferences of the FHLBank’s stockholders, subject to any terms and
conditions imposed by the Finance Board.

Capital Concentration.  The following table presents holdings of 5 percent or more of the FHLBank’s total Class B stock,
including mandatorily redeemable capital stock, outstanding at December 31 and includes any known affiliates that are
members of the FHLBank (dollars in millions): 

2006 2005
Balance % of Total Balance % of Total

Charter One Bank, N.A. $ 582 15% $ 549 14%
U.S. Bank, N.A. 526 14 496 13
Fifth Third Bank 372 10 351 9
Ohio Savings Bank 214 6 202 5

Total $ 1,694 45% $ 1,598 41%
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Note 15—Employee Retirement Plans 

The FHLBank participates in the Pentegra Defined Benefit Plan for Financial Institutions (Pentegra Defined Benefit
Plan), a tax-qualified defined benefit pension plan. The plan covers substantially all officers and employees of the
FHLBank. Funding and administrative costs of the Pentegra Defined Benefit Plan charged to other operating expenses
were $3,290,000, $2,969,000 and $1,982,000 in 2006, 2005 and 2004. The Pentegra Defined Benefit Plan is a
multiemployer plan in which assets contributed by one participating employer may be used to provide benefits to
employees of other participating employers since assets contributed by an employer are not segregated in a separate
account or restricted to provide benefits only to employees of that employer. As a result, disclosure of the accumulated
benefit obligations, plan assets, and the components of annual pension expense attributable to the FHLBank are not
made.

The FHLBank also participates in the Pentegra Defined Contribution Plan for Financial Institutions, a tax-qualified
defined contribution pension plan. The FHLBank contributes a percentage of the participants' compensation by making
a matching contribution equal to a percentage of voluntary employee contributions, subject to certain limitations. The
FHLBank contributed $571,000, $489,000, and $451,000 in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004.

The FHLBank has a Benefit Equalization Plan (BEP). The BEP is a non-qualified supplemental retirement plan that
restores those pension benefits that would be available under the qualified plans (both defined benefit and defined
contribution features) were it not for legal limitations on such benefits. The FHLBank also sponsors a fully insured
postretirement benefits program that includes health care and life insurance benefits for eligible retirees. Future retirees
are eligible for the postretirement benefits program if they were hired prior to August 1, 1990, are age 55 or older, and
their age plus years of continuous service at retirement are greater than or equal to 80. Spouses are covered subject to
required contributions. There are no funded plan assets that have been designated to provide benefits from either the
BEP or the postretirement benefits plan. 

The FHLBank's contributions to the defined contribution feature of the BEP use the same matching rules as the
qualified defined contribution plan discussed above plus the related earnings. The FHLBank contributed $697,000,
$345,000, and $334,000 in the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004. 

The FHLBank adopted SFAS No. 158 Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement Plans
– an amendment of FASB Statements No. 87, 88, 106, and 132(R) (SFAS 158) as of December 31, 2006. The amounts
recognized in the financial statements upon adoption were as follows (dollars in thousands):

Before After
Application Application
of SFAS 158 Adjustments of SFAS 158

Other liabilities $     447,741 $    1,752 $    449,493
Total liabilities 77,478,069 1,752 77,479,821
Accumulated other comprehensive 

income: Other (4,042) (1,752) (5,794)
Total capital 3,908,601 (1,752) 3,906,849

In December 2003, the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization Act of 2003 (the Medicare 
Act) became law in the United States. The Medicare Act introduces a prescription drug benefit under Medicare Part D as
well as a federal subsidy to sponsors of retiree health care benefit plans that provide a benefit that is at least
actuarially equivalent to the Medicare Part D benefit. In May 2004, the FASB issued Staff Position FAS 106-2,
Accounting and Disclosure Requirements Related to the Medicare Prescription Drug, Improvement and Modernization
Act of 2003, which provides guidance on the accounting and disclosures for the effects of the federal subsidy provided
by the Medicare Act. The FHLBank’s disclosures regarding its accumulated postretirement benefit obligation and net
periodic postretirement benefit cost reflect estimated amounts associated with the federal subsidy. The estimated
subsidy reduced the December 31, 2006 benefit obligation by $492,000.
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The obligations and funding status of the defined benefit feature of the FHLBank’s BEP and postretirement benefits
plan at December 31 were as follows (in thousands):

Postretirement
Benefits

BEP Plan
2006 2005 2006 2005

Change in benefit obligation(1):
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $   15,113 $ 13,679 $   3,161 $   3,078
Service cost 383 281 51 49
Interest cost 873 806 178 173
Amendments (4) - - -
Actuarial loss 756 1,180 239 13
Recognition of Medicare Act retiree drug subsidy - - (492) -
Benefits paid (1,336) (833) (97) (152)

Benefit obligation at end of year 15,785 15,113 3,040 3,161

Change in plan assets:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year - - - -
Employer contribution 1,336 833 97 152
Benefits paid (1,336) (833) (97) (152)

Fair value of plan assets at end of year - - - -

Funded status (15,785) (15,113) (3,040) (3,161)
Unrecognized net actuarial loss 5,691 5,834 107 362
Unrecognized prior service benefit (4) (107) - -

Net amount recognized in earnings $  (10,098) $  (9,386) $  (2,933) $  (2,799)

(1)   Represents projected benefit obligation and accumulated postretirement benefit obligation for the BEP and postretirement benefits
plan, respectively.

Amounts recognized in accumulated other comprehensive income at December 31, 2006 consist of (in thousands):

Postretirement
Benefits 

BEP Plan
2006 2006

Net actuarial loss $ 5,691 $    107
Prior service benefit (4) -

$ 5,687 $    107

Amounts recognized in the Statements of Condition for the defined benefit feature of the BEP at December 31, 2005 
are below (in thousands). This table is not applicable to 2006 as the funded status is reported on the Statement of
Condition.

2005

Accrued benefit liability (accumulated benefit obligation) $ (13,472)
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (4,086)

Net amount recognized $ (9,386)
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Components of the net periodic benefit cost for the defined benefit feature of the BEP and postretirement benefits plan
for the years ended December 31 were (in thousands):

Postretirement
Benefits

BEP Plan
2006 2005 2004 2006 2005 2004

Service cost $ 383 $ 281 $ 210 $ 51 $ 49 $ 38
Interest cost 873 806 798 178 173 171
Amortization of unrecognized prior service benefit (108) (107) (107) - - -
Amortization of unrecognized net loss 899 1,320 971 3 2 -
Net periodic benefit cost $ 2,047 $ 2,300 $ 1,872 $ 232 $ 224 $ 209

The measurement date used to determine the current year’s benefit obligation was December 31, 2006.

The increase (decrease) in the minimum liability included in other comprehensive income for the defined benefit
component of the BEP was (in thousands) $44, $53, and $(417) for the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005 and 2004.
Key assumptions and other information for the actuarial calculations for the BEP for the years ended December 31 were
(dollars in thousands):

2006 2005 2004

Discount rate 5.75% 5.50% 5.75%
Salary increases 4.50% 4.50% 4.50%
Amortization period 6 years 4 years 5 years
Benefits paid during the year $ 1,336 $ 833 $ 833

Key assumptions and other information for the postretirement benefits plan for the years ended December 31 were:

2006 2005 2004

Discount rate 5.75% 5.75% 6.50%
Weighted average discount rate

at the end of the year 6.00% 5.75% 5.75%
Health care cost trend rates:

Assumed for next year 9.00% 8.00% 8.50%
Ultimate rate 5.25% 5.25% 5.25%
Year that ultimate rate is reached 2017 2014 2014

The effect of a percentage point increase in the assumed health care trend rates would be an increase in net periodic
postretirement benefit expense of $47,000 and in accumulated postretirement benefit obligation (APBO) of $437,000.
The effect of a percentage point decrease in the assumed health care trend rates would be a decrease in net periodic
postretirement benefit expense of $37,000 and in APBO of $354,000.

The discount rates for the disclosures as of December 31, 2006 were determined by using a discounted cash flow
approach, which incorporates the timing of each expected future benefit payment. Estimated future benefit payments
are based on each plan’s census data, benefit formulae and provisions, and valuation assumptions reflecting the
probability of decrement and survival. The present value of the future benefit payments are determined by using
weighted average duration based interest rate yields from a variety of highly rated relevant corporate bond indices as
of December 31, 2006, and solving for the single discount rate that produces the same present value.
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Contributions for the defined benefit feature of the BEP and postretirement benefits plan in 2007 are anticipated to be
approximately (in thousands) $1,088 and $156, respectively. Estimated future benefits payments reflecting expected
future services for the years ended after December 31, 2006 were (in thousands):

Postretirement Benefit Plan
Gross Benefit Estimated Medicare

Years BEP Payments Retiree Drug Subsidy

2007 $ 1,088 $   156 $    16
2008 1,087 161 18
2009 1,037 163 19
2010 1,116 177 20
2011 1,210 183 22
Years 2012 – 2016 7,437 1,013 132

Note 16—Segment Information

The FHLBank has identified two primary operating segments based on its method of internal reporting: Traditional
Member Finance and the Mortgage Purchase Program. These segments reflect the FHLBank’s two primary Mission Asset
Activities and the manner in which they are managed from the perspective of development, resource allocation, product
delivery, pricing, credit risk management, and operational administration. The segments identify the primary ways the
FHLBank provides services to member stockholders. The FHLBank, as an interest rate spread manager, considers a
segment’s net interest income, net interest rate spread and, ultimately, net income as the key factors in allocating
resources. Resource allocation decisions are made by considering these profitability measures in the context of the
historical, current and expected risk profile of each segment and the entire balance sheet, as well as current incremental
profitability measures relative to the incremental market risk profile. 

Overall financial performance and risk management are dynamically managed primarily at the level of, and within the
context of, the entire balance sheet rather than at the level of individual business segments or product lines. Also, the
FHLBank hedges specific asset purchases and specific subportfolios in the context of the entire mortgage asset portfolio
and the entire balance sheet. Under this holistic approach, the market risk/return profile of each business segment does
not correspond, in general, to the performance that each segment would generate if it were completely managed on a
separate basis. It is not possible, given this approach, to accurately determine what the performance would be if the
two business segments were managed on stand-alone bases. Further, because financial and risk management is a
dynamic process, the performance of a segment over a single identified period may not reflect the long-term expected
or actual future trends for the segment.

The Traditional Member Finance segment includes products such as Advances and investments and the borrowing costs
related to those assets. The FHLBank assigns its investments to this segment primarily because they have historically
been used to provide liquidity for Advances and to support the level and volatility of earnings from Advances. Income
from the Mortgage Purchase Program is derived primarily from the difference, or spread, between the yield on
mortgage loans and the borrowing cost of Consolidated Obligations outstanding allocated to this segment at the time
debt is issued. Both segments also earn income from investment of interest-free capital. Capital is allocated
proportionate to each segment’s average assets based on the total balance sheet’s average capital-to-assets ratio.
Expenses are allocated based on cost accounting techniques that include direct usage, time allocations and square
footage of space used. AHP and REFCORP are calculated using the current assessment rates based on the income before
assessments for each segment. All interest rate swaps, including their market value adjustments under SFAS 133, are
allocated to the Traditional Member Finance segment because the FHLBank has not executed interest rate swaps in its
management of the Mortgage Purchase Program’s market risk. All derivatives classified as mandatory delivery
commitments and forward-rate agreements are allocated to the Mortgage Purchase Program segment.
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The following table sets forth the FHLBank’s financial performance by operating segment for the years ended 
December 31 (in thousands):

Traditional Member Mortgage Purchase
Finance Program Total

2006
Net interest income $    302,319 $     84,117 $    386,436
Other income 4,801 880 5,681
Other expenses 37,599 8,564 46,163

Income before assessments 269,521 76,433 345,954

Affordable Housing Program 23,345 6,239 29,584
REFCORP 49,235 14,039 63,274

Total assessments 72,580 20,278 92,858

Net income $ 196,941 $ 56,155 $    253,096

Average assets $  69,598,701 $ 9,802,524 $ 79,401,225

Total assets $  71,455,084 $  9,931,586 $  81,386,670

2005
Net interest income $    261,376 $ 78,612 $    339,988
Other income 3,915 (805) 3,110
Other expenses 34,662 7,955 42,617

Income before assessments 230,629 69,852 300,481

Affordable Housing Program 20,188 5,702 25,890
REFCORP 42,088 12,830 54,918

Total assessments 62,276 18,532 80,808

Net income $    168,353 $    51,320 $    219,673

Average assets $  70,040,700 $ 9,348,840 $ 79,389,540

Total assets $ 67,408,082 $ 9,771,768 $ 77,179,850

2004
Net interest income $    216,086 $    85,879 $    301,965
Other income 43,830 (161) 43,669
Other expenses 29,155 7,293 36,448

Income before assessments 230,761 78,425 309,186

Affordable Housing Program 18,975 6,402 25,377
REFCORP 42,357 14,405 56,762

Total assessments 61,332 20,807 82,139

Net income $    169,429 $    57,618 $    227,047

Average assets $  72,174,510 $ 8,320,169 $ 80,494,679

Total assets $ 67,842,007 $  8,734,521 $ 76,576,528
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Note 17—Derivatives and Hedging Activities

Nature of Business Activity

The FHLBank may enter into interest-rate swaps (including callable and putable swaps), swaptions, interest-rate cap
and floor agreements, calls, puts, and futures and forward contracts (collectively, derivatives) to manage its exposure to
changes in interest rates. 

The FHLBank may adjust the effective maturity, repricing frequency, or option characteristics of financial instruments
to achieve risk management objectives. The FHLBank uses derivatives in several ways: by designating them as either a
fair value of an underlying financial instrument, by acting as an intermediary, or in asset-liability management (i.e., an
economic hedge). For example, the FHLBank uses derivatives in its overall interest-rate risk management to adjust the
interest-rate sensitivity of Consolidated Obligations to approximate more closely the interest-rate sensitivity of assets
(Advances, investments, and mortgage loans) and/or to adjust the interest-rate sensitivity of Advances, investments, or
mortgage loans to approximate more closely the interest-rate sensitivity of liabilities. 

In addition to using derivatives to manage mismatches of interest rates between assets and liabilities, the FHLBank uses
derivatives (1) to manage embedded options in assets and liabilities, (2) to hedge the market value of existing assets
and liabilities, (3) to hedge the duration risk of prepayable instruments, (4) to exactly offset other derivatives executed
with members (when the FHLBank serves as an intermediary) and (5) to reduce funding costs.

Consistent with Finance Board Regulation, the FHLBank enters into derivatives only to reduce the interest rate risk
exposures inherent in otherwise unhedged assets and funding positions, to achieve the FHLBank’s risk management
objectives, and to act as an intermediary between its members and counterparties. FHLBank management may use
derivatives when they are considered to be the most cost-effective alternative to achieve the FHLBank’s financial and
risk management objectives. Accordingly, the FHLBank may enter into derivatives that do not necessarily qualify for
hedge accounting (economic hedges). 

An economic hedge is defined as a derivative hedging specific or non-specific underlying assets, liabilities, or a firm
commitment that does not qualify or was not designated for hedge accounting, but is an acceptable hedging strategy
under the FHLBank’s risk management program. These economic hedging strategies also comply with Finance Board
regulatory requirements prohibiting speculative hedge transactions. An economic hedge by definition introduces the
potential for earnings variability caused by the changes in fair value on the derivatives that are recorded in the
FHLBank’s income but not offset by corresponding changes in the value of the economically hedged assets, liabilities,
or firm commitments. As a result, the FHLBank recognizes only the change in fair value of these derivatives in other
income as “Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities” with no offsetting fair value adjustments for the asset,
liability, or firm commitment.

Types of Assets and Liabilities Hedged

The FHLBank documents all relationships between derivatives designated as hedging instruments and the hedged items,
its risk management objectives and strategies for undertaking various hedge transactions, and its method of assessing
effectiveness. This process includes linking all derivatives that are designated as fair value hedges to assets and
liabilities on the Statements of Condition. The FHLBank also formally assesses (both at the hedge's inception and at
least quarterly) whether the derivatives that are used in hedging transactions have been effective in offsetting changes
in the fair value of the hedged items and whether those derivatives may be expected to remain effective in future
periods. The FHLBank currently uses regression analyses to assess the effectiveness of its hedges. 

The FHLBank discontinues hedge accounting prospectively when: (1) it determines that the derivative is no longer
effective in offsetting changes in the fair value of a hedged item; (2) the derivative and/or the hedged item expires or is
sold, terminated, or exercised; or (3) management determines that designating the derivative as a hedging instrument in
accordance with SFAS 133 is no longer appropriate. 

Consolidated Obligations – While Consolidated Obligations are the joint and several obligations of the FHLBanks, each
FHLBank has Consolidated Obligations for which it is the primary obligor. The FHLBank enters into derivatives to
hedge the interest rate risk associated with its specific debt issuances.
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For instance, in a typical transaction, fixed-rate Consolidated Obligations are issued for one or more FHLBanks, and the
FHLBank simultaneously enters into a matching derivative in which the counterparty pays fixed cash flows to the
FHLBank designed to mirror in timing and amount the cash outflows the FHLBank pays on the Consolidated
Obligation. These transactions are treated as fair value hedges under SFAS 133. In this typical transaction, the FHLBank
pays a variable cash flow that closely matches the interest payments it receives on short-term or variable-rate
Advances, typically 3-month LIBOR. This intermediation between the capital and derivatives markets permits the
FHLBank to raise funds at lower costs than would otherwise be available through the issuance of simple fixed- or
floating-rate Consolidated Obligations in the capital markets.

Advances – With issuances of Convertible/Putable Advances, the FHLBank purchases from the member a put option
that enables the FHLBank to convert/terminate the Advance and extend additional credit on new terms, which is
normally the case when interest rates increase. The FHLBank hedges a Convertible/Putable Advance by entering into a
cancelable derivative with a counterparty pursuant to which the FHLBank pays a fixed rate and receives a variable rate.
This type of hedge is treated as a fair value hedge under SFAS 133. The derivative counterparty may cancel the
derivative on the put date, which the counterparty normally would do in a rising rate environment, and the FHLBank
can convert/terminate the Advance.

The optionality embedded in certain financial instruments held by the FHLBank can create interest-rate risk. When a
member prepays an Advance, the FHLBank could suffer lower future income if the principal portion of the prepaid
Advance were invested in lower-yielding assets that continue to be funded by higher-cost debt. To protect against this
risk, the FHLBank generally charges a prepayment fee that makes it financially indifferent to a member’s decision to
prepay an Advance. When the FHLBank offers Advances (other than short-term Advances) that a member may prepay
without a prepayment fee, it usually finances such Advances with callable debt or otherwise hedges this option.

Mortgage Loans – The FHLBank invests in fixed rate mortgage loans. The prepayment options embedded in mortgage
loans can result in extensions or contractions in the expected repayment of these investments, depending on changes
in estimated prepayment speeds. The FHLBank manages the interest-rate and prepayment risk associated with
mortgages with issuance of callable debt, non-callable debt, and prepayment linked debt to achieve cash flow patterns
and liability durations similar to those expected on the mortgage loans. The FHLBank is permitted to use derivatives to
match the expected prepayment characteristics of the mortgages, although to date it has not done so. 

Firm Commitment Strategies – In accordance with SFAS 149, certain mortgage purchase commitments entered into
after June 30, 2003, are considered derivatives. The FHLBank normally hedges these commitments by selling to-be-
announced (TBA) mortgage-backed securities for forward settlement. A TBA represents a forward contract for the sale
of mortgage-backed securities at a future agreed upon date for an established price. The mortgage purchase
commitment and the TBA used in the firm commitment hedging strategy (economic hedge) are recorded as a derivative
asset or derivative liability at fair value, with changes in fair value recognized in the current period earnings. When the
mortgage purchase commitment derivative settles, the current market value of the commitment is included with the
basis of the mortgage loan and amortized accordingly.

Investments – The FHLBank invests in U.S. agency obligations, mortgage-backed securities, and the taxable portion of
state or local housing finance agency obligations. The interest rate and prepayment risk associated with these
investment securities is managed through a combination of debt issuance and, possibly, derivatives. The FHLBank
manages the prepayment and interest rate risk by funding investment securities with Consolidated Obligations that
have call features or by hedging the prepayment risk with caps or floors, callable swaps or swaptions. These investment
securities may be classified as held-to-maturity, available-for-sale or trading securities.  

The FHLBank may also manage the risk arising from changing market prices or cash flows of investment securities
classified as trading by entering into derivatives (economic hedges) that offset the changes in fair value or cash flows
of the securities. The market value changes of both the trading securities and the associated derivatives are included in
other income in the Statements of Income and presented, respectively, as part of the “Net gain (loss) on trading
securities” and “Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities.”

Managing Credit Risk on Derivatives

The FHLBank is subject to credit risk due to the risk of nonperformance by counterparties to the derivative agreements.
The degree of counterparty risk depends on the extent to which master netting arrangements are included in the
contracts to mitigate the risk. The FHLBank manages counterparty credit risk through credit analysis, collateral
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requirements and adherence to the requirements set forth in FHLBank policies and Finance Board Regulations. Based
on credit analyses and collateral requirements, the management of the FHLBank does not anticipate any credit losses
on its derivative agreements.

The contractual or notional amount of derivatives reflects the involvement of the FHLBank in the various classes of
financial instruments. The notional amount of derivatives does not measure the credit risk exposure of the FHLBank,
and the maximum credit exposure of the FHLBank is substantially less than the notional amount. The FHLBank
requires collateral agreements on all derivatives that establish collateral delivery thresholds. The maximum credit risk is
the estimated cost of replacing interest-rate swaps, forward-rate agreements, and mandatory delivery contracts for
mortgage loans that have a net positive market value, assuming the counterparty defaults and the related collateral, if
any, is of no value to the FHLBank. This collateral has not been sold or repledged. 

At December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank's maximum credit risk, as defined above, was approximately
$12,555,000 and $65,000. These totals include $38,010,000 and $0 of net accrued interest receivable. In determining
maximum credit risk, the FHLBank considers accrued interest receivables and payables, and the legal right to offset
derivative assets and liabilities by counterparty. The FHLBank held $450,000 and $0 cash as collateral as of December
31, 2006 and 2005. The FHLBank held no securities as collateral as of December 31, 2006 or 2005. Additionally,
collateral with respect to derivatives with member institutions includes collateral assigned to the FHLBank, as
evidenced by a written security agreement, and held by the member institution for the benefit of the FHLBank.

The FHLBank transacts most of its derivatives with large banks and major broker-dealers. Some of these banks and
broker-dealers or their affiliates buy, sell, and distribute Consolidated Obligations. The FHLBank is not a derivative
dealer and thus does not trade derivatives for short-term profit. Note 19 discusses assets pledged by the FHLBank to
these counterparties.

The FHLBank has not issued Consolidated Obligations denominated in currencies other than U.S. dollars.

Financial Statement Impact and Additional Financial Information

Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging activities recorded in other income for the years ended December 31 were as
follows (in thousands):

Net Gain (Loss) on Derivatives and Hedging Activities

For the Year Ended
2006 2005 2004

Amortization of basis adjustments on
modified Advance hedging relationships $  360 $ 1,254 $ 37,560

Gains (losses) related to fair value hedge
ineffectiveness 643 (1,090) 2,503

Gains (losses) on economic hedges 926 (812) (508)
Net gain (loss) on derivatives and hedging

activities $ 1,929 $ (648) $ 39,555
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The FHLBank had no transactions that qualified for cash flow hedge accounting, or any derivatives that required
bifurcation from a host contract in 2006, 2005, or 2004. The following table represents outstanding notional balances
and estimated fair values excluding accrued interest of the derivatives outstanding at December 31 (in thousands):

2006 2005
Estimated Estimated

Notional Fair Value Notional Fair Value

Interest-rate Swaps:
Fair value $  31,769,255 $  (207,745) $  31,401,325 $  (468,325)
Economic 20,000 580 10,000 (282)

Forward-rate Agreements:
Economic 86,000 236 28,000 (15)

Mortgage Delivery Commitments:
Economic 106,508 (275) 38,758 (7)

Total $  31,981,763 $  (207,204) $  31,478,083 $  (468,629)

Total derivatives excluding accrued interest $  (207,204) $  (468,629)
Accrued interest 112,200 40,967

Net derivative balances $  (95,004) $  (427,662)

Net derivative asset balances $   12,555 $         65
Net derivative liability balances (107,559) (427,727)

Net derivative balances $  (95,004) $  (427,662)

Note 18—Estimated Fair Values

The following estimated fair value amounts have been determined by the FHLBank using available market information
and the FHLBank’s best judgment of appropriate valuation methods. These estimates are based on pertinent information
available to the FHLBank as of December 31, 2006 and 2005. Although the FHLBank uses its best judgment in
estimating the fair value of its financial instruments, there are inherent limitations in any estimation technique or
valuation methodology. For example, because an active secondary market does not exist for a portion of the FHLBank’s
financial instruments, in certain cases, fair values are not subject to precise quantification or verification and may
change as economic and market factors and evaluation of those factors change. Therefore, these estimated fair values
are not necessarily indicative of the amounts that would be realized in current market transactions. The Fair Value
Summary Tables do not represent an estimate of the overall market value of the FHLBank as a going concern, which
would take into account future business opportunities and the net profitability of assets versus liabilities.

Subjectivity of estimates.  Estimates of the fair value of Advances with options, mortgage instruments, derivatives with
embedded options and bonds with options using the methods described below and other methods are highly subjective
and require judgments regarding significant matters such as the amount and timing of future cash flows, prepayment
speed assumptions, expected interest rate volatility, methods to determine possible distributions of future interest rates
used to value options, and the selection of discount rates that appropriately reflect market and credit risks. Changes in
these judgments often have a material effect on the fair value estimates. Since these estimates are made as of a specific
point in time, they are susceptible to material near term changes.

Cash and due from banks. The estimated fair value approximates the recorded book balance.

Interest bearing deposits and investment securities. The estimated fair value is determined based on each security’s
quoted prices, excluding accrued interest, as of the last business day of the year.

Securities purchased under agreements to resell.  The estimated fair value approximates the recorded book balance.
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Federal funds sold. The estimated fair value of overnight Federal funds approximates the recorded book balance. The
estimated fair value of term Federal funds is determined by calculating the present value of the expected future cash
flows. The discount rates used in these calculations are the rates for Federal funds with similar terms, as approximated
by adding an estimated current spread to the LIBOR swap curve for Federal funds with similar terms.

Held-to-maturity securities. The estimated fair value for mortgage-backed securities and collateralized mortgage
obligations is determined based on each security’s indicative market price, obtained from a third-party provider. The
estimated fair value excludes accrued interest. The estimated fair value for taxable municipal bonds is determined based
on each security’s indicative market price obtained from a third-party provider excluding accrued interest.

Advances and other loans. The FHLBank determines the estimated fair value of Advances by calculating the present
value of expected future cash flows from the Advances and excluding the amount of the accrued interest receivable.
The discount rates used in these calculations are the replacement rates for Advances with similar terms, as
approximated either by adding an estimated current spread to the LIBOR swap curve or by using current indicative
market yields, as indicated by the FHLBank Advance pricing methods for Advances with similar current terms. In
accordance with Finance Board Regulations, Advances with a maturity and repricing period greater than six months
require a prepayment fee sufficient to make the FHLBank financially indifferent to the borrower's decision to prepay
the Advances. Therefore, the estimated fair value of Advances does not assume prepayment risk. 

For swapped Advances, the estimated fair value is determined (independently of the related derivative) by the
discounted cash flow method based on the LIBOR swap curve and forward rates at year end adjusted for the estimated
current spread on new swapped Advances to the swap curve. For swapped Advances with a conversion option, the
conversion option is valued by taking into account the LIBOR swap curve and forward rates at year end and the
market’s expectations of future interest rate volatility implied from current market prices of similar options. 

Mortgage loans held for portfolio. The estimated fair values for mortgage loans are determined based on quoted market
prices offered to approved members as indicated by the FHLBank’s Mortgage Purchase Program pricing methods for
mortgage loans with similar current terms excluding accrued interest. The quoted prices offered to members are based
on Fannie Mae price indications on to-be-announced mortgage-backed securities and FHA price indications on
government-guaranteed loans; the FHLBank then adjusts these indicative prices to account for particular features of the
FHLBank’s Mortgage Purchase Program that differ from the Fannie Mae and FHA securities. These features include, but
may not be limited to:

•  the Mortgage Purchase Program’s credit enhancements;

•  marketing adjustments that reflect the FHLBank’s cooperative business model, appetite for purchasing mortgage
loans given the current net spreads to funding costs relative to their risks and preferences for particular kinds of
loans and mortgage note rates.

These prices, however, can change rapidly based upon market conditions and are highly dependent upon the underlying
prepayment assumptions.

Accrued interest receivable and payable. The estimated fair value approximates the recorded book value.

Derivative assets/liabilities. The FHLBank determines the estimated fair value of interest-rate exchange agreements
based on current market conditions of interest-rate exchange agreements with similar current terms, including accrued
interest receivable and payable. The estimated fair value is based on the LIBOR swap curve and forward rates at year
end and, for agreements containing options, the market’s expectations of future interest rate volatility implied from
current market prices of similar options. The estimated fair value uses standard valuation techniques for interest-rate
swap agreements, including discounted cash flow analysis and comparisons to similar instruments. The fair values are
netted by counterparty where such legal right exists. If these netted amounts are positive, they are classified as an asset
and, if negative, a liability.

Deposits. The FHLBank determines the estimated fair value of FHLBank deposits with fixed rates by calculating the
present value of expected future cash flows from the deposits and reducing this amount for accrued interest payable.
The discount rates used in these calculations are the cost of deposits with similar terms. 
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Mandatorily redeemable capital stock. The fair value of capital subject to mandatory redemption is generally par value.
Fair value also includes the estimated dividend earned at the time of reclassification from equity to liabilities, until
such amount is paid, and any subsequently declared stock dividend. Stocks can only be acquired by members at par
value and redeemed at par value. Stock is not traded and no market mechanism exists for the exchange of stock
outside the cooperative structure. 

Consolidated Obligations. The FHLBank determines the estimated fair value for Discount Notes by calculating the
present value of expected future cash flows from the Discount Notes excluding accrued interest. The discount rates used
in these calculations are current replacement rates for Discount Notes with similar current terms, as approximated by
adding an estimated current spread to the LIBOR swap curve. Each month’s cash flow is discounted at that month’s
replacement rate.

The FHLBank determines the estimated fair value for non-callable Consolidated Obligation Bonds (both unswapped and
swapped) by calculating the present value of scheduled future cash flows from the bonds excluding accrued interest.
The discount rates used in these calculations are estimated current market yields, as indicated by the Office of Finance,
for bonds with similar current terms.

The FHLBank determines the estimated fair value of callable Consolidated Obligation Bonds (both unswapped and
swapped) by calculating the present value of expected future cash flows from the bonds excluding accrued interest. The
estimated fair value is determined by the discounted cash flow method based on the LIBOR swap curve and forward
rates adjusted for the estimated spread on new callable bonds to the swap curve and based on the market’s
expectations of future interest rate volatility implied from current market prices of similar options. 

Commitments. The estimated fair value of the FHLBank's commitments to extend credit is estimated using the fees
currently charged to enter into similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the
present creditworthiness of the counterparties. For fixed-rate loan commitments, fair value also considers the difference
between current levels of interest rates and the committed rates. The estimated fair value of Standby Letters of Credit is
based on the present value of fees currently charged for similar agreements or on the estimated cost to terminate them
or otherwise settle the obligations with the counterparties. The estimated fair value of standby bond purchase
agreements is based on the present value of the estimated fees taking into account the remaining terms of the
agreements.
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The carrying values and estimated fair values of the FHLBank's financial instruments at December 31, 2006 were as
follows (in thousands):

2006 FAIR VALUE SUMMARY TABLE

Net
Carrying Unrealized Estimated

Financial Instruments Value Gains (Losses) Fair Value
Assets:

Cash and due from banks $         4,022 $           - $        4,022
Interest-bearing deposits 6,535,562 361 6,535,923
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,150,000 - 1,150,000
Federal funds sold 9,641,700 (29) 9,641,671
Trading securities 4,602 - 4,602
Available-for-sale securities 1,188,450 - 1,188,450
Held-to-maturity securities 12,099,348 (276,910) 11,822,438
Advances 41,956,538 (80,925) 41,875,613
Mortgage loans held for portfolio, net 8,460,716 (152,163) 8,308,553
Accrued interest receivable 300,555 - 300,555
Derivative assets 12,555 - 12,555

Liabilities:

Deposits (927,234) 56 (927,178)
Consolidated Obligations:

Discount Notes (21,946,379) 1,352 (21,945,027)
Bonds (53,239,244) 366,372 (52,872,872)

Mandatorily redeemable capital stock (137,109) - (137,109)
Accrued interest payable (559,358) - (559,358)
Derivative liabilities (107,559) - (107,559)

Other:

Commitments to extend credit for Advances - 82 82
Standby bond purchase agreements - 959 959
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The carrying values and estimated fair values of the FHLBank's financial instruments at December 31, 2005 were as
follows (in thousands):

2005 FAIR VALUE SUMMARY TABLE

Net
Carrying Unrealized Estimated

Financial Instruments Value Gains (Losses) Fair Value
Assets:

Cash and due from banks $         4,948 $             - $        4,948
Interest-bearing deposits 6,284,166 (958) 6,283,208
Securities purchased under agreements to resell 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Federal funds sold 7,487,900 (43) 7,487,857
Trading securities 6,187 - 6,187
Available-for-sale securities 1,151,271 - 1,151,271
Held-to-maturity securities 12,290,770 (254,033) 12,036,737
Advances 40,261,623 (108,529) 40,153,094
Mortgage loans held for portfolio, net 8,418,139 (139,556) 8,278,583
Accrued interest receivable 238,625 - 238,625
Derivative assets 65 - 65

Liabilities:

Deposits (910,717) 119 (910,598)
Consolidated Obligations:

Discount Notes (17,577,416) 3,694 (17,573,722)
Bonds (53,520,279) 411,828 (53,108,451)

Mandatorily redeemable capital stock (418,381) - (418,381)
Accrued interest payable (436,981) - (436,981)
Derivative liabilities (427,727) - (427,727)

Other:

Commitments to extend credit for Advances - 830 830
Standby bond purchase agreements - 1,314 1,314

Note 19—Commitments and Contingencies

As described in Note 13, Consolidated Obligations are backed only by the financial resources of the FHLBanks. The
joint and several liability Finance Board Regulation authorizes the Finance Board to require any FHLBank to repay all
or a portion of the principal and interest on Consolidated Obligations for which another FHLBank is the primary
obligor. No FHLBank has had to assume or pay the Consolidated Obligation of another FHLBank.  

The FHLBank considered the guidance under FASB interpretation No. 45, Guarantor’s Accounting and Disclosure
Requirements for Guarantees, Including Indirect Guarantees of Indebtedness of Others – an Interpretation of FASB
Statements No. 5, 57, and 107 and rescission of FASB Interpretation No. 34 (FIN 45), and determined that it was not
necessary to recognize a liability for the fair values of its joint and several obligation related to other FHLBanks’
Consolidated Obligations at December 31, 2006 or 2005. The joint and several obligations are mandated by Finance
Board Regulations and are not the result of arms-length transactions among the FHLBanks. The FHLBanks have no
control over the amount of the guaranty or the determination of how each FHLBank would perform under the joint and
several obligation. Because the FHLBanks are subject to the authority of the Finance Board as it relates to decisions
involving the allocation of the joint and several liability for the FHLBank's Consolidated Obligations, the FHLBank's
joint and several obligation is excluded from the initial recognition and measurement provisions of FIN 45. The par
amounts of the FHLBanks’ outstanding Consolidated Obligations for which the FHLBank is jointly and severally liable
were approximately $952.0 billion and $937.5 billion at December 31, 2006 and 2005. 
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Commitments that legally bind and unconditionally obligate the FHLBank for additional Advances totaled
approximately (in thousands) $7,875 and $254,327 at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Commitments generally are for
periods up to 12 months. Standby Letters of Credit are executed for members for a fee. A Standby Letter of Credit is a
financing arrangement between the FHLBank and its member. If the FHLBank is required to make payment for a
beneficiary’s draw, these amounts are converted into a collateralized Advance to the member. Standby Letters of Credit
are reflected in the following table: 

2006 2005
Outstanding Notional (in thousands) $  6,498,480 $  1,405,886
Original Terms 14 days to 18.5 years 20 days to 18.5 years
Final Expiration Year 2024 2023

Unearned fees for transactions prior to 2003 as well as the value of the guarantees related to Standby Letters of Credit
entered into after 2002 are recorded in other liabilities and amounted to (in thousands) $1,229 and $1,070 at December
31, 2006 and 2005. Based on management's credit analyses and collateral requirements, the FHLBank has not deemed it
necessary to record any additional liability on these commitments. Commitments are fully collateralized at the time of
Advance issuance (see Note 8). The estimated fair values of commitments as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 are
reported in Note 18.

The FHLBank has standby bond purchase agreements with one state housing authority whereby the FHLBank, for a fee,
agrees to purchase and hold the authority’s bonds until the designated marketing agent can find a suitable investor or
the housing authority repurchases the bonds according to a schedule established by the standby agreement. Each
standby agreement dictates the specific terms that would require the FHLBank to purchase the bonds. The bond
purchase commitments entered into by the FHLBank expire after five years, currently no later than 2010, though some
are renewable at the option of the FHLBank. Total commitments for bond purchases were $243.2 million and $251.6
million at December 31, 2006 and 2005. During 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank was not required to purchase any bonds
under these agreements. The estimated fair values of standby bond purchase agreements as of December 31, 2006 and
2005 are reported in Note 18.

Commitments that unconditionally obligate the FHLBank to purchase mortgage loans totaled $106.5 million and $38.8
million at December 31, 2006 and 2005. Commitments are generally for periods not to exceed 90 days. Such
commitments are recorded as derivatives at their fair values. 

The FHLBank generally executes derivatives with major banks and broker-dealers and generally enters into bilateral
collateral agreements. As of December 31, 2006 and 2005, the FHLBank had no securities pledged as collateral to
broker-dealers.

The FHLBank charged to operating expenses net rental costs of approximately $1,807,000, $1,698,000, and $1,673,000
for the years ending December 31, 2006, 2005, and 2004. Future minimum rentals at December 31, 2006 were as
follows (in thousands):

Year Premises Equipment Total

2007 $   882 $  132 $  1,014
2008 876 132 1,008
2009 837 52 889
2010 845 - 845
2011 853 - 853
Thereafter 2,471 - 2,471

Total $  6,764 $  316 $  7,080

Lease agreements for FHLBank premises generally provide for increases in the basic rentals resulting from increases in
property taxes and maintenance expenses. Such increases are not expected to have a material effect on the FHLBank.

At December 31, 2006, the FHLBank was committed to issue $1,305.6 million in Consolidated Obligations, of which
$1,040.0 million were hedged with associated interest rate swaps. At December 31, 2005, the FHLBank was committed
to issue $59.3 million in Consolidated Obligations, none of which were hedged with an associated interest rate swap.
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Other Developments

The FHLBank is subject to legal proceedings arising in the normal course of business. Management does not anticipate
that the ultimate liability, if any, arising out of these matters will have a material effect on the FHLBank’s financial
condition or results of operations.

Notes 1, 8, 9, 10, 11, 13, 14, 15, and 17 discuss other commitments and contingencies.

Note 20—Transactions with Other FHLBanks 

The FHLBank is a federally chartered corporation, one of 12 District Federal Home Loan Banks (FHLBanks). The Federal
Housing Finance Board (Finance Board), an independent agency in the executive branch of the U.S. government,
supervises and regulates the FHLBanks and the Office of Finance. The FHLBanks’ debt instruments (Consolidated
Obligations), issued by the Office of Finance on behalf of the FHLBanks, are backed only by the financial resources of
the FHLBanks and are the primary source of funds for the FHLBanks. Additional information concerning the
relationship of the FHLBank with the other FHLBanks, the Finance Board, and the Office of Finance, as well as a
description of the FHLBank’s contingent joint and several liability on Consolidated Obligations of the FHLBanks, is
contained in “Background Information” and Note 13 of these Notes to Financial Statements.

Occasionally, the FHLBank loans short-term funds to and borrows short-term funds from other FHLBanks. These loans
and borrowings are transacted at then current market rates when traded. The FHLBank has noted such activity on the
face of its financial statements. There were no such loans or borrowings outstanding at December 31, 2006, 2005, or
2004. The following table details the average daily balance of lending and borrowing between the FHLBank and other
FHLBanks for the years ended December 31 (in thousands).

Average Daily Balances
2006 2005 2004

Loans to other FHLBanks $ 9,667 $ 13,271 $ 57,434

Borrowings from other FHLBanks 411 - 1,563

The FHLBank may, from time to time, assume the outstanding primary liability for Consolidated Obligations of another
FHLBank rather than issue new debt for which the FHLBank is the primary obligor. The FHLBank then becomes the
primary obligor on the transferred debt. There are no formal arrangements governing the transfer of Consolidated
Obligations between the FHLBanks. These transfers are not investments of one FHLBank in another FHLBank. They
reflect, rather, the act of one FHLBank assuming the debt obligation (at then current market rates on the day when the
transfer is traded) that was originally issued by another FHLBank. Transferring debt at current market rates enables the
FHLBank System to satisfy the debt issuance needs of individual FHLBanks without incurring the additional selling
expenses (concession fees) associated with new debt and provides the transferring FHLBanks with outlets for
extinguishing debt structures no longer required for their balance sheet management strategies.

There were no Consolidated Obligations transferred to the FHLBank during the year ended December 31, 2006. During
the years ended December 31, 2005 and 2004, the par amounts of the liability on Consolidated Obligations transferred
to the FHLBank totaled (in thousands) $87,000, and $360,000, respectively. All such transfers were from the FHLBank
of Chicago. The net discounts associated with these transactions (in thousands) were $(1,266), and $(10,458) in 2005
and 2004, respectively. The FHLBank accounts for these transfers in the same manner as it accounts for new debt
issuances (see Note 13). The FHLBank did not transfer any Consolidated Obligations to other FHLBanks in 2006, 2005,
or 2004.

Note 21—Transactions with Stockholders

As a cooperative, the FHLBank’s capital stock is owned by its members, former members that retain the stock as
provided in the FHLBank’s Capital Plan or by non-member institutions that have acquired members and must retain the
stock to support Advances or other activities with the FHLBank. All Advances are issued to members and all mortgage
loans held for portfolio are purchased from members. The FHLBank also maintains demand deposit accounts for
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members, primarily to facilitate settlement activities that are directly related to Advances and mortgage loan purchases.
The FHLBank may not invest in any equity securities issued by its stockholders and it has not purchased any
investment or mortgage-backed securities issued by any of its stockholders. Additionally, the FHLBank has not entered
into any interest-rate exchange agreements with any of its stockholders. 

For financial statement purposes, the FHLBank defines related parties as those members with more than 10 percent of
the voting interests of the FHLBank capital stock outstanding. The Act prescribes the voting rights of the FHLBank’s
members in the election of directors. In accordance with the Act and Finance Board Regulations, members elect a
majority of the FHLBank’s Board of Directors. The remaining directors are appointed by the Finance Board. Under the
statute and regulations, each elective directorship is designated to one of the three states in the FHLBank’s district and
each member is entitled to vote only for candidates for the state in which the member’s principal place of business is
located. A member is entitled to cast, for each applicable directorship, one vote for each share of capital stock that the
member is required to hold, subject to a statutory limitation. Under this limitation, the total number of votes that a
member may cast is limited to the average number of shares of the FHLBank’s capital stock that were required to be
held by all members in that state as of the record date for voting. Non-member stockholders are not entitled to cast
votes for the election of directors. At December 31, 2006 and 2005, no member owned more than 10 percent of the
voting interests of the FHLBank in the election of directors due to statutory limits on members’ voting rights as
discussed above.

All transactions with members are entered into in the ordinary course of business. The FHLBank does not hold
mortgage-backed securities securitized by, or other direct long-term investments in, its members or their affiliates.
Finance Board Regulations require the FHLBank to provide the same pricing for Advances and other services to all
members regardless of asset or transaction size, charter type, or geographic location. The FHLBank may, in pricing its
Advances, distinguish among members based upon its assessment of the credit and other risks to the FHLBank of
lending to any particular member, or other reasonable criteria that may be applied equally to all members. The
FHLBank’s policies and procedures require that such standards and criteria be applied consistently and without
discrimination to all members applying for Advances. 

Transactions with Directors’ Financial Institutions. In the ordinary course of its business, the FHLBank may provide
products and services to members whose officers or directors serve as directors of the FHLBank (Directors’ Financial
Institutions). Finance Board Regulations require that transactions with Directors’ Financial Institutions be made on the
same terms as those with any other member. The following table reflects the balances with Directors’ Financial
Institutions for the items indicated below as of December 31, 2006 and 2005 (dollars in millions).

2006 2005
Balance % of Total(1) Balance % of Total(1)

Advances $ 11,808 28.2% $ 11,194 27.9%
Mortgage Purchase Program 56 0.7 61 0.7
Mortgage-backed securities - - - -
Regulatory Capital Stock 668 17.6 674 17.2
Derivatives 55 0.2 2 0.1

(1)   Percentage of total principal (Advances), unpaid principal balance (Mortgage Purchase Program), principal 
balance (mortgage-backed securities), regulatory capital stock, and notional balances (derivatives). 
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Concentrations. The following table shows regulatory capital stock balances, outstanding Advance principal balances,
and unpaid principal balances of Mortgage Loans Held for Portfolio at December 31, 2006 and 2005 to members
holding 5 percent or more of regulatory capital stock and includes any known affiliates that are members of the
FHLBank (dollars in millions):

Regulatory Mortgage Purchase
Capital Stock Advance Program Unpaid

December 31, 2006 Balance % of Total Principal Principal Balance

Charter One Bank, N.A.(1) $  582 15% $ 10,772 $   -
U. S. Bank, N.A. 526 14 6,757 159
Fifth Third Bank 372 10 4,048 19
Ohio Savings Bank 214 6 3,971 -

Total $ 1,694 45% $ 25,548 $ 178

Regulatory Mortgage Purchase
Capital Stock Advance Program Unpaid

December 31, 2005 Balance % of Total Principal Principal Balance

Charter One Bank, N.A.(1) $  549 14% $ 9,876 $   -
U. S. Bank, N.A. 496 13 3,621 201
Fifth Third Bank 351 9 3,045 21
Ohio Savings Bank 202 5 3,878 -

Total $ 1,598 41% $ 20,420 $ 222

(1)   Charles J. Koch, Chairman of the Board of Charter One Bank, was a director of the FHLBank during 2005 and 2006. 
Advances made to Charter One Bank were on the same terms and rates available to other members for similar transactions.

Non-member Affiliates.  The FHLBank has a relationship with a non-member affiliate, the Kentucky Housing
Corporation. The nature of this relationship is twofold: one as an approved borrower from the FHLBank and one in
which the FHLBank invests in the purchase of the Kentucky Housing Corporation bonds. Kentucky Housing Corporation
had no borrowings during the years ended December 31, 2006, 2005, or 2004. The FHLBank had investments in the
bonds of the Kentucky Housing Corporation of $13,820,000, $14,435,000, and $15,015,000 as of December 31, 2006,
2005, and 2004, respectively.
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